Deponent: Edmund L. Rahming
No. of Affidavit: 5
Date Sworn: 16" December 2019

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE BAHAMAS

QPERGEEBDRYION

DEC 16§ 2018 CAUSE NO. COM/bnk/00077 OF 2019

Nassau, Bahamas
IN THE MATTER OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1992, CH. 308

AND IN THE MATTER OF PACIFICO GLOBAL ADVISORS LTD.

FIFTH AFFIDAVIT OF
EDMUND L. RAHMING

I, EDMUND RAHMING, of the Western District of the Island of New Providence, one

of the Islands of the Commonwealth of The Bahamas, make OATH and SAY as follows:

I. That I am the Official Liquidator (“Official Liquidator”) of Global Pacifico
Advisors Ltd. (In Liquidation) (“PGA”).

2. Unless otherwise stated the facts and matters deposed hereto are within my
knowledge obtained by me in my capacity as the Official Liquidator of PGA. Where
the matters deposed hereto are not within my knowledge, they are derived from the
sources which I identify and are true to the best of my information and belief.

3. There is now produced and shown to me a paginated bundle of true copies of
documents to which I will refer in this affidavit marked “Exhibit ER-1”. References

to page numbers are to those contained in that Exhibit.
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4. By an Order dated the 28" October 2019 and filed herein on the 8" November 2019
(“the October 2019 Order”) the voluntary liquidation of PGA was put under the
supervision of the Supreme Court of The Bahamas and I was appointed the Official
Liquidator of PGA. There is now produced and shown to me a copy of the October
2019 Order at pages 1 to 4 of Exhibit ER-1.

5. This Affidavit is sworn pursuant to Order 10(1) (2) (¢) of the Companies Liquidation
Rules, 2012 (“CLR”) which inter alia requires an Official Liquidator to report to the
Court and CLR Order 10 (3) (1) which requires an Official Liquidator to file said
report and accounts with the Court. The First Report of the Official Liquidator of
PGA for the period of 2™ October 2019 to 30" November 2019 (“First PGA
Report”).

6.  Pursuant to the aforementioned CLR Orders the First PGA Report has been prepared
by me. I verily believe the contents of this First Report to be true. There is now
produced and shown to me a copy of the First Report at pages 5 to 71 of Exhibit ER-

1.

7. The contents of this Affidavit are true and correct to the best of my knowledge information

and belief.

SWORN TO at the City of Nassau )

~

New Providence, this 16" day of )

December, A.D., 2019 ) ‘/j

BEFORE ME,
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SUPREME COURT |
IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE BAHAMAS NOY 08 2019

COMMERCIAL DIVISION Nassau, Bahamas

CAUSE NO. COM/bnk/00077 OF 2019

IN THE MATTER OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1992, CH. 308

AND IN THE MATTER OF PACIFICO GLOBAL ADVISORS LTD.

SUPERVISION ORDER

BEFORE the Honourable Mr. Justice lan Winder, Judge of the Supreme Court,
in Chambers.

UPON HEARING Mrs. Simone Morgan-Gomez, Mrs. Courtney Pearce-Hanna
and Ms. Philisea Bethel Counsel for Mr. Edmund Rahming of INTELISYS, 2 Caves
Professional Center, Caves Village, West Bay Street & Blake Road, Nassau, The Bahamas
(“Voluntary Liquidator™) upon his petition for an order that the liquidation of Pacifico
Global Advisors Ltd. (“the Company”) continue under the supervision of the Court and
Messrs. Gawaine Ward and Gladstone Brown of the Securities Commission of The
Bahamas.

AND UPON READING the following documents: Winding Up Petition dated 23"
October 2019 and filed herein on 24" October 2019; Summons for Directions dated 23"
October 2019 and filed herein on 4" October 2019; First Affidavit of Edmund Rahming:
in Support of Winding Up Petition sworn 23" October 2019 and filed herein on 24"

October 2019; Second Affidavit of Edmund Rahming: Regarding Acceptance of
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Appointment as Official Liquidator sworn 23" October 2019 and filed herein on 24™
October 2019 and Certificate of Urgency dated 24% October 2019 and filed herein on 25
October 2019.

AND UPON THE COURT BEING SATISFIED that the Voluntary Liquidator

is a qualified insolvency practitioner.

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED THAT:

1. The liquidation of the Company be continued under the supervision of the
Court.
2. The commencement date of the liquidation herein is 2™ October 2019.

3. Mr. Edmund Rahming, Chartered Accountant and Managing Director in the
accountancy and asset recovery services company of Intelisys Ltd., situate at 2
Caves Professional Center, Caves Village, West Bay Street & Blake Road, Nassau,
The Bahamas be appointed as the Official Liquidator of the Company.

4, The company INTELISYS of 2 Caves Professional Center, Caves Village,
West Bay Street & Blake Road, Nassau, The Bahamas be appointed to provide back
office support services to the Company.

5. The law firm of Callenders & Co. of No.1 Millars Court, Nassau, The
Bahamas be appointed to provide which will provide general counsel legal services.

6. All costs incurred by Mr. Rahming and his advisors to date shall be costs in

the liquidation.
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7. The Official Liquidator of the Company has liberty to apply.

DATED the 28" day of October, A.D., 2019.

FILED theﬁ day of November, A.D., 2019.

BY ORDER OF THE COURT

REGISTRAR

This Order was filed by CALLENDERS & CO., of No. | Millars Court, Nassau, N.P.
Attorneys for the Official Liquidator.
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Pacifico Global Advisors Ltd. (In Liquidation)

First Interim Report of the Official Liquidator

For the period of October 2, 2019 to November 30, 2019 concerning the voluntary and official
liquidation
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First Report of the Official Liquidator
Glossary of Terms

Glossary of terms

e “Act’ - The Companies (Winding Up Amendment) Act, 2011
e “Ansbacher” — Ansbacher (Bahamas) Limited
e “B$"- Bahamian Dollars

e “Banks” - three (3) local banks providing banking services to and for the Company —~ RBC Royal Bank
(Bahamas) Limited, Ansbacher (Bahamas) Limited and Deltec Bank & Trust Limited

e “CA$" - Canadian Dollars
e “Credinvest’ — Banca Credinvest SA

e “Company” - Pacifico Global Advisors Ltd. (encompassing its various states: before voluntary liquidation,
during the voluntary liquidation and during the current court supervised liquidation)

e “Court’ - The Supreme Court of The Bahamas

o “Custodians” - four (4) third party service providers with whom customer funds were invested, i.e. DBT
(defined hereinabove), Swissquote, Credinvest and NIB the latter three defined hereinbelow

e “DBT"- Deltec Bank & Trust Limited

e “DFS" - Deltec Fund Services Limited

o “Deltec’ - DBT and DFS jointly

e “Euro” - Euro dollars

e “Finamic” - Finamic Services - ATRIUM financial reporting system

o ‘“First Meeting” - meeting of creditors scheduled for January 16, 2020

e “Kicays" — Kicays Accounting and Consulting Services

e “Kikivarakis & Co." — Kikivarakis & Co. Chartered Accountants and Consultants

» “Klein" — Arturo Klein, Former Chief Executive Officer of the Company, a Director of the Company and the
beneficial shareholder of the Company via ownership of shares in the Company and ownership of shares in
Valora Investments Ltd., the Company's majority shareholder.

e “BC" - International Business Company

* ‘“Liquidator” - joint reference to the Official Liquidator and Voluntary Liquidator both defined here in below
“Lanciano” - Luca Lanciano, Former Chief Operating Officer of the Company

o “Lyford Fund" — Lyford Diversified Global Fund, SAC
e “NIB" - North International Bank Limited
e “Official Liquidator" ~Edmund L. Rahming, Official Liquidator of the Company

e “Order” - Order of the Court dated October 28, 2019 placing the liquidation of the Company under Court
supervision and appointing Edmund L. Rahming as Official Liquidator of the Company

» “Peitioner” — Mr. Edmund L. Rahming when he was the Voluntary Liquidator of the Company
e “Phoenix” — Phoenix Capital Limited
o “Receiver’ - Philip C. Galanis of HLB Galanis & Co.

Intelisys
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First Report of the Official Liquidator
1 Introduction

1 Introduction

Basis of Appointment

1.1 On October 2, 2019, pursuant to a resolution passed by the shareholders of the Company and the Act, the
Company was placed into voluntary liquidation and Mr. Edmund L. Rahming of Intelisys was appointed as
Voluntary Liquidator of the Company. A copy of the resolution is attached at Appendix 1.

1.2 On October 28, 2019, by Order of The Supreme Court of the Bahamas and pronounced by The Honorable
Mr. Justice lan Winder, the voluntary liquidation of the Company was continued under the supervision of The
Supreme Court of the Bahamas. Further, Mr. Edmund L. Rahming was appointed as Official Liquidator of the
Company. A copy of the resolution is attached at Appendix 1.

1.3 Unless otherwise stated all financial data in this report is in United States Dollars (“US$").

Restrictions and Qualifications of the Report

14 This first report is prepared and submitted by the Official Liquidator to creditors and customers of the Company
for the purpose of providing information regarding the work undertaken by the Liquidator since the date of his
appointment as Voluntary Liquidator and continuing through his appointment as Official Liquidator to the
November 30, 2019. This first report presents his preliminary findings in preparation for the meeting of
creditors and customers of the Company to be held on January 16, 2020.

1.5 Neither the Liquidator, Intelisys, Callenders & Co. nor any of the other team members advising Mr. Rahming
in this liquidation (voluntary and later under Court supervision) will be responsible for any losses, damages,
liabilities or claims arising from the use and/or reliance on this report.

1.6 In performing their work, the Liquidator and his team have relied on the integrity and accuracy of the
information and documents supplied. Although the Liquidator and his team have attempted to corroborate
the information they have obtained from different sources, they have not independently verified all the
information and documentation upon which they have relied in preparing this report. In addition, the Liquidator
and his team have not performed an audit or review in accordance with General or International Auditing
Standards, and consequently, no assurance is expressed in this regard.

Intelisys
As at November 30, 2019
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First Report of the Official Liquidator
1 Introduction

1.7

1.8

1.9

1.10

1.11

1.12

Intelisys
As at November 30, 2019

This report has been prepared in a limited time frame and not all information relevant to the investigation of
the Company'’s affairs is at hand. The Liquidator and his team have therefore formed their views based on
the information provided to date.

This report shall not be copied, reproduced or distributed without the prior written permission of the Liquidator.

Sources of Financial Data and Information
The Liquidator and his team have drawn upon documentation obtained from the Company and information
and documentation obtained from the following service providers to the Company:
(a) Auditors: Kikivarakis & Co. the Company'’s current auditors
(b) Data processors: Finamic- Use ATRIUM system (to prepare company
holdings information on a consolidated and allocated basis)
(c) Custodians/Brokers: Four (4) third-party custodiansfbrokers — DBT, Swissquote, Credlnvest and NIB
(d) Banks: Three (3) banks - RBC, Ansbacher, and DBT

The Liquidator and his team have also obtained information from the following parties:

(a) Director and shareholders — Klein;

(b) The SCB;

(c) Welwyn — Corporate Secretary; and

(d) Former staff of the Company.

Scope of Work Performed

Pursuant to Section 205(3) of the Act, the Official Liquidator may exercise the powers necessary to carry out
the duties and functions of a liquidator under the Act and depending on the circumstances, he may or may

not need the sanction/approval of the Court. The powers of an Official Liquidator are set out in the Fourth
Schedule to the Act and are listed below:

Powers exercisable with sanction
(@) Power to bring or defend any action or other legal proceeding in the name and on behalf of the Company;

(b) Power to carry on the business of the Company, so far as may be necessary for the beneficial winding
up of the same;

TS i
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First Report of the Official Liquidator
1 Introduction

(c) Power to dispose of any property of the Company to a person who is or was related to the Company;
(d) Power to pay any class of creditors in full;

(e) Power to make any compromise or arrangement with creditors or persons claiming to be creditors or
having or alleging themselves to have any claim (present or future, certain or contingent, ascertained or
sounding only in damages) against the Company or for which the Company may be rendered liable;

(f) Power to compromise on such terms as may be agreed all debts and liabilities capable of resulting in
debts, and all claims (present or future, certain or contingent, ascertained or sounding only in damages)
subsisting, or supposed to subsist between the Company and a contributory or alleged contributory or
other debtor or person apprehending liability to the Company;

(9) Power to deal with all questions in any way relating to or affecting the assets or the winding up of the
Company, to take any security for the discharge of any such call, debt, liability or claim and to give a
complete discharge in respect of it;

(h) Power to sell any of the Company’s property by public auction or private contract with power to transfer
the whole of it to any person or to sell the same in parcels;

(i) Power to raise or borrow money and grant securities therefor over the property of the Company;
(i) Power to disclaim onerous property.
1.13  Powers exercisable without sanction

(a) Power to take possession of, collect and get property of the Company and for that purpose to take all
such proceedings as he considers necessary;

(b) Power to do all acts and execute, in the name and on behalf of the Company, all deeds, receipts, and
other documents, and for that purpose use, when necessary, the Company's seal;

(c) Power to prove, rank and claim in the bankruptcy, insolvency or sequestration of any contributory for any
balance against his estate, and to receive dividends in the bankruptcy, insolvency or sequestration in
respect of that balance, as a separate debt due from the bankrupt or insolvent and rateably with the other
separate creditors;

Intelisys
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First Report of the Official Liquidator
1 Introduction

(d) Power to draw, accept, make and endorse any bill of exchange or promissory note in the name of and on
behalf of the Company, with the same effect in respect of the Company’s liability as if the bill or note had
been drawn, accepted, made or endorsed by or on behalf of the Company in the course of its business;

(e) Power to promote a scheme of arrangement pursuant to section 158;
() Power to convene meetings of creditors and contributories;

(g) Power to engage staff (whether or not as employees of the Company) to assist him in the performance
of his functions;

(h) Power to engage counsel and attorneys and other professionally qualified persons to assist him in the
performance of his functions;

(i) Power to do all other things incidental to the exercise of his powers.

Basis of Findings

114 In order for the Liquidator to comply with his duties and obligations, certain aspects of the work has been
performed by staff from Intelisys under the direction of the Liquidator. As such, when referring to the work
performed, the report makes reference to “we” and “us”. These terms are synonymous with the Liquidator.

115 Inaddition, the Liquidator have been guided by the advice he has received from his legal counsel, Callenders
& Co.

Intelisys
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First Report of the Official Liquidator
2 Executive Summary

2 Executive Summary

2.1 Upon appointment, the Voluntary Liquidator provided notice of the winding up of the Company and his
appointment as Voluntary Liquidator to the Company's registered office, directors, employees, professional
service providers, banks, custodians, customers, creditors, and the SCB. Additional information in relation to
communication with each of these stakeholders is contained in Section 4, “Activities Upon and Since
Appointment”.

22 The Liquidator has taken the necessary steps to preserve assets held in the Company’s name, including
submitting requests to banking institutions that all cash accounts be frozen effective as at the date of
appointment and requesting that custodians do not allow any transactions to occur with respect to securities
and accounts held in the name of the Company.

23 The Liquidator has taken possession of the books and records of the Company, including: -

a) Manual records located on the premises from which the Company previously operated and at a storage
site;

b)  Electronic records stored on the computers and on cloud servers utilised by staff of the Company; and
c) Statements and other information obtained independently from custodians and banks.

24 The Liquidator and his team have conducted a review to determine the precise cause of the liquidation. Based
on their review the liquidation was ultimately caused by the mismanagement of the Company. In 2017 the
Company began to experience a cash shortage/solvency issue which was the result of paying out “excessive
cash” to related parties for business introductions and consulting. During the years 2018 and 2019 the cash
shortage issue was exasperated by late and inaccurate reporting on the Sub-Funds, the Sub-Funds being
placed into receivership, and the Company'’s strategic decision not to take on new clients while regularizing
its portfolio.

25 The Liquidator and his team have had limited time to review the Company's records, however based on what
they have seen or been told to date, they have identified a number of areas of concern which require further
analysis or investigation for the purpose of assessing the Company’s financial position and the position vis-a-
vis its customers and the Sub-Funds. The more significant areas of concern are: -

Intelisys
As at November 30, 2019
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First Report of the Official Liquidator
2 Executive Summary

a) The Company's accounting records are several months in arrears as at the date of the Liquidator's
appointment. Further, audited accounts have not been issued since the 2017 financial year in breach of
Sections 30 and 31 of the Securities Industry Act, 2011. The Liquidator has undertaken a broker
reconciliation exercise for the purposes of bringing the client accounts up to date.

b) Commissions receivable includes a substantial amount due related to the investments in the Sub-Funds
and based on the NAVs. The Official Liquidator will calculate the exact amount and address with the
Receiver and seek sanction of the Court.

c¢) Redemptions were made from the Sub-Funds with the knowledge that the NAVs were inflated and illiquid
investments existed in the Sub-Funds. While this is an issue primarily for the Receiver to address, it
does have an adverse impact on customers of the Company that currently have holdings in the Sub-
Funds.

d) There were unauthorized transactions involving one of the Custodians after notification of the liquidation
of the Company. The Official Liquidator will address these issues.

e) There are substantial related party payments and transfers made with the apparent knowledge that
insolvency of the Company would occur. There also appear to be creditor payments made shortly before
the liquidation which were transacted with the knowledge that the Company would shortly become
insolvent. These payments and transfers will be reviewed by the Official Liquidator in accordance with
the Act.

f) As noted previously, a cause of the insolvency was the reporting issues the Company had with one of
the local Custodians. The Company has documented several claims against the custodian. These claims
will be reviewed, and a recommendation made to the creditors and customers.

26 As a result of preliminary investigations to date, the Liquidator believes that further financial and legal analysis
is required to determine the financial position of the Company, what improprieties (if any) occurred, what
potential claims (if any) the Company may have, and the amounts owed to creditors and customers. The
Official Liquidator intends to make recommendations to the customers and creditors and to seek the direction
of the Court to undertake the financial and legal analysis.

Intelisys
As at November 30, 2019
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First Report of the Official Liquidator
2 Executive Summary

2.7 Until such time as the Court provides directions in relation to these matters the Official Liquidator has
determined to limit any further work in respect of the liquidation to those matters necessary to comply with his
fiduciary responsibilities. Such work includes, the calling and holding of a meeting of creditors and customers,
safeguarding the assets of the Company, complying with various statutory requirements, including the
application for the use of trust assets to cover the cost of the liquidation, the application for directions on the
way forward vis-a-vis the Sub-Funds and commissions receivable, continuing liaison with the SCB, and other
matters necessary for the Official Liquidator to discharge his duties.

Intelisys
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3 Background

3

Background

3.1

3.2

3.3

34

35

Intelisys

As at November 30, 2019

Principal Activities of the Company

The Company was incorporated on September 30, 2011. On December 30, 2011 the Company was
registered and licensed by the SCB to “Manage Securities”. The principal activity of Company for the years
2012 to 2014 was providing investment advisory services. These services were provided to clients via a third-
party platform provided by APMS Assets and Portfolio Management Services Ltd. The Company hired
Tamburini as Chief Executive Officer in early 2013. He was employed with the Company from March 2013 to
December 2017. Lanciano was hired as Chief Operating Officer in late 2014. He was employed with the
Company from October 2014 to June 2018. The Company operated from the Royal Star Building, JFK Drive
for the period from October 1, 2014 to September 30, 2018. On October 1, 2018 the Company moved to 1
Pineapple House, Old Fort Bay, West Bay Street.

On September 11, 2015 the Company was licensed and registered by the SCB for “Managing Securities,
Dealing as Agent or Principal, Arranging Deals in Securities, and Advising on Securities”, effectively a broker-
dealer license. The principal activities of the Company became managing securities, dealing as agent or
principal, arranging deals in securities, and advising on securities.

The clients were referred to the Company mainly by Klein, Tamburini and Lanciano. We noted that the
majority of clients on the Company's books were clients referred by Tamburini and Lanciano.

The Company's assets under management as at year-end December 31 were as follows: 2014: $118M: 2015:
$282M; 2016: $334M; 2017: $314M; 2018: $229M

The Lyford Fund, an open-ended investment fund incorporated in the Bahamas in June 2015, was promoted
to the management of the Company by executives at Deltec, as a beneficial investment holding structure for
the Company's clients. Between October 2016 and June 2017, the Company sponsored a total of twenty
Sub-Funds or Segregated Accounts linked to the Lyford Fund and had over $217M (as of December 31, 2017)

or approximately 70% of its assets under management placed into the Sub-Funds. The Segregated Account
was the main fund sponsored by the Company.
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3 Background

36 For the Company's sponsored Sub-Funds, DFS acted as the Administrator, Transfer Agent, and Registrar of

the Sub-Funds, DBT acted as custodian, and Deltec Fund Directors Ltd. and Deltec Fund Governors Ltd.

acted as Directors of the Lyford Fund. The Company was the Investment Manager of the Sub-Funds and

custodian of most of the assets of the Sub-Funds. The Company’s clients are the investors and shareholders

of the Sub-Funds, and Ansbacher and Credlinvest act as custodians of some of the assets of the Sub-Funds.

3.7 The status of the Sub-Funds sponsored by the Company is shown in the table below. As at November 30,
2019 fifteen (15) of the Sub-Funds are in receivership, two (2) of the Sub-Funds were liquidated, two of the
Sub-funds were not funded, and one (1) of the Sub-Funds is closed.

No. | Sub-Fund Name Current status Assets Under Management
as at Dec. 31, 2017
1 | Alfa Pacifico Sub-Fund In receivership $83,451,988.48
2 | Basur Sub-Fund In receivership $3,511,911.49
3 | Bullion Pacifico Sub-Fund Liquidated - June 29, | $3,025,984.81
2018 (account overdrawn)
4 | Saturr Sub-Fund In receivership $3,462,829.28
5 | Spectator Sub-Fund In receivership $12,147,561.39
6 | WIK Sub-Fund In receivership $2,594,817.47
7 | Patrice Sub-Fund (USD) Liquidated — requested | $5,826,104.39
July 4, 2018
8 | EUR Conservative Sub-Fund In receivership $10,453,547.42
9 | Global Opportunities NX Sub-Fund Closed (the Company still | $3,869,982.43
has custody of assets)
10 | Global Opportunities Fund EUR SF Not funded
11 | Global Opportunities KR Sub-Fund In receivership $2,066,955.87
12 | Global Opportunities Sub-Fund EUR LU In receivership $1,537,576.15
13 | LAM Sub-Fund In receivership $19,181,625.63
14 | ALM Sub-Fund In receivership $19,302,257.32
15 | Omega Pacifico Sub-Fund In receivership - (in initial offering stage as
at December 31, 2017)

Intelisys

As at November 30, 2019
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First Report of the Official Liquidator

3 Background

36 For the Company’s sponsored Sub-Funds, DFS acted as the Administrator, Transfer Agent, and Registrar of

the Sub-Funds, DBT acted as custodian, and Deltec Fund Directors Ltd. and Deltec Fund Governors Ltd.

acted as Directors of the Lyford Fund. The Company was the Investment Manager of the Sub-Funds and

custodian of most of the assets of the Sub-Funds. The Company's clients are the investors and shareholders

of the Sub-Funds, and Ansbacher and CredInvest act as custedians of some of the assets of the Sub-Funds.

3.7 The status of the Sub-Funds sponsored by the Company is shown in the table below. As at November 30,
2019 fifteen (15) of the Sub-Funds are in receivership, two (2) of the Sub-Funds were liquidated, two of the
Sub-funds were not funded, and one (1) of the Sub-Funds is closed.

No. | Sub-Fund Name Current status Assets Under Management
as at Dec. 31, 2017
1 | Alfa Pacifico Sub-Fund In receivership $83,451,988.48
2 | Basur Sub-Fund In receivership $3,511,911.49
3 | Bullion Pacifico Sub-Fund Liquidated - June 29, | $3,025,984.81
2018 (account overdrawn)
4 | Saturr Sub-Fund In receivership $3,462,829.28
5 | Spectator Sub-Fund In receivership $12,147,561.39
6 | WIK Sub-Fund In receivership $2,594,817.47
7 | Patrice Sub-Fund (USD) Liquidated - requested | $5,826,104.39
July 4, 2018
8 | EUR Conservative Sub-Fund In receivership $10,453,547.42
9 | Global Opportunities NX Sub-Fund Closed (the Company still | $3,869,982.43
has custody of assets)
10 | Global Opportunities Fund EUR SF Not funded
11 | Global Opportunities KR Sub-Fund In receivership $2,066,955.87
12 | Global Opportunities Sub-Fund EUR LU In receivership $1,537,576.15
13 | LAM Sub-Fund In receivership $19,181,625.63
14 | ALM Sub-Fund In receivership $19,302,257.32
15 | Omega Pacifico Sub-Fund In receivership - (in initial offering stage as
at December 31, 2017)

Intelisys

As at November 30, 2019
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First Report of the Official Liquidator

3 Background
16 | Pacifico Global Opportunities Sub-Fund CM | In receivership $5,476,297.84
17 | Pacifico Global Opportunities Sub-Fund GT | In receivership $26,661,157.65
18 | Pacifico Global Opportunities Sub-Fund KA | In receivership $8,804,604.78

19 | Pacifico Global Opportunities Sub-Fund OR | Not funded -

20 | Pacifico Global Opportunities Sub-Fund DE | In receivership $5,892,956.04

Total | $217,268,158.40

Events prior to the Liquidator's Appointment

Intemal Conflict

3.8 We understand that in early 2017 the Company began to experience internal conflict amongst its stakeholders.
The stated reasons for the internal conflict vary and include a lack of communication between the managing
shareholder and executive management, a lack of transparency in the day-to-day operations of the Company,
a lack of sufficient documented policies and procedures, a lack of adherence to existing policies and
procedures, and an emerging and constant monthly cash flow shortage that resulted in an inability to pay in
a timely fashion the business introducers.

39 On November 30, 2017, the SCB was advised by the Company’s legal counsel of its intention to dismiss
Tamburini, CEO, effective December 4, 2017, and to replace him with managing shareholder, Klein.
Subsequently, the Company’s Compliance Officer, Ms. Candice McPhee was dismissed effective March 16,
2018 and Lanciano, the Company’s Chief Operating Officer resigned effective June 30, 2018 (He tendered
his resignation letter on March 31, 2018).

3.10  Prior to his departure from the Company, Lanciano set up a new investment advisory firm, Phoenix Capital
Ltd. firm licensed with the SCB in May 2018.

Intelisys
As at November 30, 2019
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3.13

3.14

3.15

3.16
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Tamburini sent instructions, via Phoenix Capital Ltd., to DFS on May 29, 2018 for redemptions representing
51% (approximately $28M Euro) of the assets in the Segregated Account, a Sub-Fund of the Lyford Fund.
The redeemed assets were to be placed by subscription into a new Segregated Account called EUR Top
Selection Sub-Fund sponsored by Tamburini. EUR Top Selection Sub-Fund was to be administered by
Deltec. The redemptions were to occur on June 30, 2018. These instructions were not executed. (We are
informed that the Company at the request of Klein was provided by DFS a listing of redemption requests,
including 51% of assets of the Segregated Account, in late June 2018. Prior to this the Company claims to
have not been informed or aware of the redemption requests sent by Tamburini to DFS.)

On June 6, 2018 the Company (without the knowledge of 51% redemption request) wrote DFS and advised
that it would be transferring the investment management mandate of twelve (12) sponsored sub-funds (EUR
Conservative, CM, GT, KA, DE, OR, NX, SF, KR, LU, LAM, and ALM) to Phoenix Capital Ltd. The
understanding of the Company was that the investment management mandate would be transferred on June
30, 2019 to Phoenix Capital and the Company would maintain the custody arrangement. |

On June 28, 2018 the Company advised Deltec that Lanciano was no longer an authorized signatory of the
Company and it had come to its attention that he had acted and was acting in a manner adverse to the
Company i.e. the 51% of assets in the Segregated Account redemption requests and subscriptions to the
EUR Top Selection sub-fund. On June 29, 2018 the Company questioned the validity of the redemption
requests of 51% of the assets of the Segregated Account as they came from a staff member, Lanciano, of the
Company acting on behalf of Phoenix Capital Ltd. in a manner adverse to the Company and without
authorization of the Company.

A dispute arose between Deltec, the Company, Tamburini and Lanciano/Phoenix Capital which resulted in
the instructions not being carried out.

Between January 21, 2019 and June 19, 2019, Tamburini and Mr. Gianluca Berti, a business introducer to
the Company, requested the closure and transfer of thirty-nine (39) individual client account mandates, setup
and referred by them, with assets under custody of the Company and/or invested in the Segregated Account.

On June 29, 2019, Lanciano requested the closure and transfer of eighty-four (84) individual client account
mandates, setup and referred by him, with assets under custody of the Company and/or invested in thirteen
(13) sub-funds including the Segregated Account. Subsequently, the Company received additional requests
for closure and transfer of fourteen (14) individual client account mandates, setup and referred by him, with

assets under custody of the Company and/or invested in thirteen (13) sub-funds including the Segregated
Account.
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3.21
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Some of the transfer requests of Tamburini and Lanciano were not executed due to various factors including
insufficient KYC on customer files and the cessation of third-party payments by CredInvest, the main custodian

of the Company.

It should be noted that Mr. Marc Brune was hired in October 2017 by the managing shareholder to be the
chairman of the Company. We were advised that he was hired to conduct an internal review of the client
relationship and operations of the Company. He led the successful negotiation of a settiement of due and
outstanding commissions with Tamburini. He was ultimately unsuccessful in keeping the client account
mandates that were referred by Tamburini and Lanciano with the Company.

Delfec

Based on a preliminary review of the Company’s books and records, the Company raised several issues it
had with Deltec which included:

a) Deltec was conflicted and acting in a manner adverse to the Company by accepting the redemption
instructions from Lanciano/Phoenix and Tamburini;

b) The contract notes received by the Company from DFS were late and not accurately calculated;

c) The NAVs were often provided to the Company late and with errors. The late NAVs resulted in an inability
to pay itself management fees and to provide clients with timely statements of holdings;

d) The NAVs contained valuation errors;
e) There were errors made by DFS with the payment of management fees; and

f)  There were investments in the Sub-Funds that did not follow the short-term liquidity requirement of the
CPOM and there were often listed holdings with pricing errors.

The Company claims these issues negatively impacted the Company’s business by resulting in cash
shortages, an inability to pay itself management fees, an inability to file year-end financial statements to meet
Regulator mandated deadlines, customer complaints to the SCB, negative publicity, legal threats from
customers, and the loss of customers.

The Official Liquidator and his team will review these claims and make recommendations to the creditors and
customers.
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3.22  As previously noted, approximately $217M of assets under management (or over 70% of the Company'’s
assets under management) were transferred between October 2016 and June 2017 into sub-funds of the
Lyford Fund sponsored by the Company. The Company acted as investment manager and custodian, DFS
acted as the Administrator of the funds, and Deltec Fund Directors Ltd. and Deltec Fund Governors Ltd. acted
as Directors of the Lyford Fund.

3.23  Prior to the liquidation and as previously noted, redemption requests for 51% of the assets of the Segregated
Account were made, redeemable as at June 30, 2018. We understand that DFS received letters from the
majority of the Alfa Pacifico Sub-Fund requesting the investment manager be changed from the Company to
Phoenix. The Company advised that several meetings were had with DFS, the Company and Phoenix to
address valuation and pricing issues.

3.24 A dispute arose between the Company, Deltec and Phoenix. The dispute arose due to the Company
apparently not having knowledge of the large redemption request that was made by Phoenix while Lanciano
was employed by the Company and the proposed change in custodianship from the Company to DFS. DFS,
in its capacity as Administrator of the Sub-Funds and proposed Administrator for the EUR Top Selection sub-
funds was conflicted. It became apparent that the dispute potentially endangered the assets in the Segregated
Account. The dispute was further complicated by ongoing redemption requests to various Sub-Funds,
valuation errors and lack of timely NAVS, liquidity issues and cross investments across the Sub-Funds.

325  OnJuly 30, 2018, a suspension notice was sent the shareholders of the Segregated Account.

3.26  OnAugust 1, 2018, the Segregated Account was suspended by unanimous consent of the Board of Directors
of the Lyford Fund.

3.27  OnMarch7,2019, the Segregated Account was placed into receivership and Mr. Philip Galanis was appointed
Receiver-Manager by the Board of Directors of the Lyford Fund. The other sub-funds were placed into
receivership on May 28, 2019.

3.28  As previously noted, the assets placed with the Sub-Funds by the Company had previously accounted for
approximately 70% of the Company’s asset under management. By December 31, 2018, due to the closure
of client accounts, transfer of accounts, and other changes at the Company, the percentage of the Company’s
assets under management in the Sub-Funds was 52% ($114M) and 87% of assets under custody. These
assets were all in receivership by May 28, 2019.

Intelisys
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On March 13, 2019, the Company received a revocation notice from the Receiver for the Segregated Account.
The Investment Manager role of the Company was revoked and a request was made for the transfer of all
assets of the Segregated Account. On May 28, 2019, the Company received revocation notices for the other
Sub-Funds.

On August 27, 2019, the Company sent instructions to its various custodians requesting the transfer of assets
to the Receiver.

As at September 30, 2019, approximately $47M in assets has been transferred from the Company’s custody
to the Receiver.

As at September 30, 2019, total assets in custody with the Company related to the Sub-Funds in receivership
consist of securities with a market value of $28,125,872 and cash of $39,320,258.

During the month of October 2019, a total of $13,446,006 had been transferred from the Company’s omnibus
account at Deltec and onto the Receiver. This transfer was made without the authorization of the Liquidator.
The Official Liquidator will review this transaction.

As at November 1, 2019, the total assets related to the Sub-Funds remaining in custody with the Company
consist of securities with a market value $28,689,531 and cash of $26,623,616.

Intemal Investigations and resulting Company’s Approach

As previously stated, Mr. Brune was hired as the new Chairman of the Company in October 2017. He was
charged immediately with conducting an investigation into the Company's affairs. He was assisted in the
investigation by Mrs. Nadia Butler, the new Compliance Officer at the Company. The reported findings of
their internal investigations were that the Company lacked clear operational and compliance related policies
and procedures, there were no internal controls, there were no corporate resolutions for decisions made, there
was no operational transparency, management personnel operated independent of each other and there was
no knowledge of what the other was doing, many of the client files lacked proper KYC documentation, and
some of the clients appeared to be involved in suspicious transactions.

As a result of the intemal investigation a total of 7 STRs were filed with the Financial Intelligence Unit and
copies were provided to the SCB.

000021,



First Report of the Official Liquidator
3 Background

3.37

3.38

3.39

340

Intelisys

As at November 30, 2019

We were informed that given the results of the intemal investigation the Company took the strategic
operational decision to not engage new clientele prior to clearing all irregularities and to closing existing
accounts that did not have KYC documentation and that raised red flags. New business clients were not
engaged by the firm during the period August 2017 to liquidation date.

Cash Shortfall

We were informed that during 2017, the Company began to experience cash shortages and was unable to
pay certain expenses, including commissions to business introducers, in a timely fashion. We understand
that this was the result of the cash withdrawals and business introducer fees that over time placed a strain on
the Company’s cash resources. Factors that further exasperated the cash shortage issue include:

a) The transfer of the majority of the assets under management by the Company to sponsored Sub-Funds
of the Lyford Fund at DFS. The Company’s books and records reveal a number of issues that the
Company documented on the reporting of the Sub-Funds and the payment of management fees and late
fees. The Company was unable to pay itself investment manager fees and administration fees on a
timely basis. These issues will be further reviewed by the Official Liquidator.

b) The Sub-Funds were eventually placed in receivership and therefore no cash revenue would be
forthcoming from the majority of its client portfolio.

c) The Company took the strategic decision to not engage new clients (from August 2017 onwards) until
after it had addressed irregularities found at the Company. Furthermore, the Company closed all client
relationships it found to be suspicious or for which proper KYC was not found on file. This resulted in no
new revenue.

The cash shortage/solvency issue and resulting liquidation of the Company appears to have been caused by
poor management of the Company, specifically paying out “excessive cash” to related parties, the inability to
pay itself management and administration fees in a timely fashion, the Sub-Funds being placed into
receivership, and the strategic decision not to take on new clients.

The capital requirement of the Company of $300,000 does not appear to have been breached during the
period August 2017 to September 2019. However, had the Company continued to operate and not receive a
capital injection the capital requirement would have been breached in October 2019.
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Incorporation and Licensing

341 The Company was incorporated on September 30, 2011 and is registered with the Companies Registry of
The Bahamas under No. 60146C. A copy of the Certificate of Incorporation is attached as Appendix 2. On
December 30, 2011 the Company was registered and licensed by the SCB to “Manage Securities”. A copy
of the license certificates attached at Appendix 3.

342 On September 11, 2015 the Company was licensed and registered by the SCB for “Managing Securities,
Dealing as Agent or Principal, Arranging Deals in Securities, and Advising on Securities”, effectively a broker-
dealer license.

343  The registered office of the Company as at the date of the appointment of the Liquidator was Lennox Paton
Corporate Services Ltd., 3 Bayside Executive Park, Blake Road & West Bay Street, Nassau, The Bahamas.
The Company’s operating office was located at No. 1 Pineapple House, West Bay Street, Nassau, The
Bahamas.

344  The Company derived its revenue from the provision of investment management services to customers.
Revenue included portfolio/asset management fees, transaction charges, custodian fees, direct investment
facilitation fees, and other miscellaneous fees. A copy of the Company’s fee schedule is shown at Appendix
4,

Share Ownership Structure

345  The Company is limited by shares and the authorized capital as stated in the Memorandum is $25,000 divided
into 25,000 shares having par value of B$1 each all being of a single class designated as “ordinary chares”.
These shares are held as follows:

Shareholder Name Shares Held B$ Value
Valora Investments Ltd. (/T for Arturo Klein) 20,000 20,000
Arturo Klein 5,000 5,000
Total 25,000 $25,000

Administration and Management

346  The Company's Board of Directors included Thomas Coughlin (resigned May 27, 2019) and Alessandra
Calcagno (appointed June 17, 2019, subject to approval of the SCB. The latest annual return dated January
17,2019 provides the following information regarding the Company’s directors/officers: -

Intelisys
As at November 30, 2019
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Title Name
Director/Managing Director/Chief Executive | Arturo Klein (resigned as Chief Executive
Officer Officer on September 20, 2019)
Director Thomas Coughlin (resigned May 27, 2019)
Secretary Welwyn Limited (resigned November 4,
2019)
Chief Operating Officer (‘C0Q") Kareem Kikivarakis (March 19, 2019 to
September 30, 2019)
Vice President, Accounting and Fund | Quetelle Ferguson
Services
Vice President of Office Operations Delecia Campbell
Compliance Officer and MLRO Vanasha Nadia Shearer-Butler
347  Atthe time of appointment of the Liquidator the Company was operated on a day-to-day basis by Kareem

Kikivarakis as COO, Ms. Quetelle Ferguson, Vice President, Accounting and Fund Services, Ms. Vanasha
Nadia Shearer-Butler, Compliance Officer and MLRO, and Ms. Delecia Campbell, Vice President of Office
Operations. Darren Seymour was the licensed trader at the Company.

348  For the period April 2018 to the date of liquidation, the Company's accounting (including bookkeeping and

financial reporting) and management function was carried out by Kicays Accounting and Consulting Services,
a company owned and operated by Kareem Kikivarakis. In March 2019, Kareem Kikivarakis was appointed
Chief Operating Officer by a resolution of the Board of the Company and held this position through to
September 30, 2019.

349  The Company's auditor is Kikivarakis & Co., located at Caves Professional Centre, Caves Village, West Bay

Street & Blake Road, Nassau, The Bahamas. The last audit completed by Kikivarakis & Co. was of the
Company's financial statements for the year-ended December 31, 2017 which was completed on May 15,
2018. A copy of the audited financial statements dated December 31, 2017 and of a draft unaudited financial
schedule showing December 31, 2018 results are attached at Appendix 5.

Structure of Services and Clientele

3.50  The Company is a standalone legal entity. At this time, we have found no other corporate structures legally

related to it.

Intelisys
As at November 30, 2019
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3.51  The Company is a broker-dealer and engaged in advisory, custody, dealer/trading activity. Assets of clients
are held under management and are subject to a discretionary management agreement. Assets of clients
are held in custody and are subject to a custody agreement.

3.52  Clients are brought to the firm by business introducers who are paid a percentage on the gross value of the
investments by the client.

3.53  Client accounts are in the form of individual name accounts or IBCs that have third party registered offices.
At the time of appointment of the Official Liquidation there were a total of 126 client accounts, including 12
client accounts with Sub-Fund investments only, 44 client accounts with investment holdings independent of
the Sub-Funds, and 70 client accounts with investment holdings both in the Sub-Funds and otherwise.

Intelisys
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4 Activities Upon and Since Appointment

Assuming Control of the Operations and Assets of the Company

41 Immediately on appointment, the Liquidator and his team attended the office of the Company and secured the
premises and records, including, inter alia: -

(a) Advising all staff in attendance, of Voluntary Liquidator's appointment by resclution of the shareholders
and outlining his duties and powers, specifically that all management control of the Company vested in
the Voluntary Liquidator and that no action in respect of the affairs of the Company or its assets, wherever
situated, could be taken without the express permission of the Voluntary Liquidator;

(b) Arranged for the access codes to the office be changed and all access to the premises to be controlled
by the Voluntary Liquidator or his staff, and obtained and secured all keys for the doors, desks, and filing
cabinets;

(c) Obtained a copy of all data and information stored on the Company’s computer system as at the date of
appointment of the Voluntary Liquidator and reviewed system access and security measures, including
limiting the access to such systems as deemed appropriate by the Voluntary Liquidator; and

(d) Reviewed the staffing requirements of the Company in view of the liquidation and engaged essential staff
on casual terms at rates of pay not less than those which the Company had engaged them.

42 The Liquidator has undertaken the following activities to secure the Company's assets and Fiduciary assets:

Cash at bank

43 The Liquidator has communicated his appointment in relation to bank accounts held in the Company's name
with RBC, Ansbacher and Deltec. On October 8, 2019, the Liquidator provided notice to the Banks to freeze

activity on the accounts. Based on our review, the balances of the accounts are as follows as at October 2,
2019:-

Intelisys
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Bank usD BSD GBP CHF EUR Total USD
(Converted)
Ansbacher 6,407 922 12,994 | 109,634 141,837
Deltec (3,941) 68,600 71,982
Royal Bank 63,550 63,550
Petty Cash 919 919
Total 2,466 64,469 922 12,994 | 178,234 278,288

44 The Liquidator has assumed control of the RBC accounts by revising the account and signatory information
and had the name on the accounts changed to “Pacifico Global Advisors Ltd. (in Voluntary Liquidation)". All
funds at Ansbacher and Deltec will be deposited and combined with the RBC account balances under the
Liquidator's contral.

Accounts Receivable

45 Accounts Receivable includes Commissions and fees receivable, Due from Clients, and Other receivables.
The balance of Accounts Receivable as at October 2, 2019 provided by the Company is $1,397,450. The
Liquidator's preliminary review and inquiries have not provided a final account balance and have only
confirmed that the amount may be understated due to missing information. The Official Liquidator will need
to conduct further research and analysis.

Prepayments and deposits

46 The balance of Prepayments and deposits as at October 2, 2019 provided by the Company is $124,078. The
Official Liquidator is conducting a review to determine the prepaid amounts that can be returned to Company.

Other Assets

47 The other assets identified by the Liquidator as assets of the Company relate to office fumiture and prints,
equipment, and computers. These assets were recorded in the Company’s accounting records as having a
balance of $62,598 as at October 2, 2019, however we understand adjustments are necessary. The
Liquidator's team prepared an updated Fixed Asset register with cost and estimated liquidation values. A
court application was made on October 28, 2019 and a court order obtained on the same date for the sale of
the office fumniture and accessories. The successful sale of the entire furniture and equipment inventory took
place on October 30, 2019 for approximately $15,500.

Infelisys
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Assets under Custody

48 On October 8, 2019, the Liquidator wrote to approximately fourteen (14) financial institutions and companies
that held or currently hold assets on behalf of the Company for customers and clients.

49 The entities were notified of the voluntary liquidation and were instructed not to conduct transactions on the
Company’s account without the authorization of the Liquidator.

Premises and Records

410  The Liquidator determined that the ongoing costs of maintaining the office premises would significantly
increase the costs of the Liquidation and having regard to the strategy of the liquidation (as detailed further
below) maintaining the premises was not in the best interests of the estate. Therefore, the Liquidator and his
team took the necessary steps to vacate the office. Al active client files and current Company documents
were scanned and placed on the Liquidator's computer system. All books and records, and office equipment,
including computers, servers and related equipment have been relocated either to the office of the Liquidator
or to a secure storage facility under the control of the Liquidator.

411 The Liquidator has written to all parties whom they believe may hold books and records of the Company
requesting copies of these records. The books and records of the Company also include electronic records
which are located on the Company’s computer server, which has been removed from the Company's premises
and is being stored in a location under the control of the Liquidator.

412 It became clear, as the Liquidator and his team conducted their initial investigations, that the books and
records of the Company, and in particular, its accounting records were at least nine months in arrears. We
were provided with a listing of journal entries for eight months however, the entries had not been entered into
the Company's accounting system. Furthermore, the Company had not issued audited financial statements
for the most recent year-ended December 31, 2018. The Company had sought a deadline extension from the
SCB and was waiting on critical NAV information to update its Commissions receivable and payable amounts
for the financial statements for year-ended December 31, 2018.

Intelisys
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413  We understand the Company's external auditors, Kikivarakis & Co., had begun the audit of the year-end 2018
financial statements and found missing information and errors i.e. management fees and commissions
payable, requiring adjustments. We were told the extemal auditors also had concerns about the solvency of
the Company. The Company was to revert to the auditors with updated financial information, including
solvency information, to complete the audit. On this basis, the Company sent a deadline extension request
for the filing of its 2018 financial statements to the SCB. We understand the Company did not revert to the
external auditor with updated financial statements/information before it was placed into voluntary liquidation
and as a result the audit for the year-ended December 31, 2018 has not been completed.

414  We have requested an interview with the external auditors and have provided a listing of questions and
requested documents. We await a response.

415  Ascertaining the contact details of the customers and beneficial owners of IBCs is now completed however a
significant amount of time has been spent by the Liquidator's staff in this regard. Notices have been sent to
those customers whose contact details have been located although it is not evident from the records reviewed
to date whether such contact records are current. The accuracy of the contact information is of concem in
relation to those customers who gave hold mail instructions to the Company, notwithstanding that it is the
customer’s obligation to maintain contact and collect mail.

416  The Liquidator has undertaken an extensive exercise to update the ATRIUM-Finamic client accounting system
with all transactions and balances found on the custedian bank statements. Prior to our appointment the
Custodians were not communicating with the Company. The updating of the ATRIUM-Finamic client
accounting system has allowed the Liquidator and his team to conduct a reconciliation of the client accounting
data at the Company to the custodians’ data — a broker reconciliation process. The reconciliation exercise is
ongoing.

Application for Court Supervision

417  Immediately following his appointment, the Liquidator formed the opinion that it would be beneficial for the
liquidation of the Company to be placed under the supervision of the Court due to doubts regarding the
Company's solvency. Further, this was the instruction of the SCB.

418  On October 24, 2019 the Voluntary Liquidator filed a Petition with the Court seeking an Order for the
supervision of this liquidation. On October 28, 2019 the matter was heard and an order was made on October
28, 2019 for the continuation of the liquidation under the supervision of the Court and for the appointment of
Edmund L. Rahming as the Official Liquidator of the Company. A copy of the Order is shown at Appendix 6.

Intelisys
As at November 30, 2019
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419  ACertificate of Insolvency was prepared by the Official Liquidator on November 27, 2019 and filed with the
Court. A copy was also provided to the Registrar of Companies.

Communication with Employees

420  As atthe date of appointment of the Liquidator, the Company employed four (4) full time employees.

421 On October 2, 2019 (being the first working day of the Liquidators’ appointment), the Liquidator and his team
met with the staff of the Company and advised that their employment would be immediately terminated. The
Liquidator also prepared letters addressed to the former employees confirming their termination.

422  The Liquidator has re-employed two (2) of the former employees on a casual basis pursuant to the same
terms and conditions which they were employed by the Company to assist the Liquidator in understanding the
Company's operations, and to assist in the reconciliation of the accounting records.

Communication with Directors

423  As at the date of appointment, the only active Director of the Company was Mr. Arturo Klein, managing
shareholder. The Liquidator engaged in a telephone conversation with Klein on October 23, 2019 to advise
him of a shareholders’ resolution for the supervision of the liquidation that would require his signature. On
November 11, 2019, the Liquidator and his team held an extensive interview with Klein to discuss the history
of the Company, the operations of the Company and its financial position. To date, Klein has assisted the
Liquidator by providing relevant information that will assist in the Official Liquidator’s further investigations of
the Company’s financial affairs.

424 Mr. Coughlin resigned as a Director on May 27, 2019. As at the date of this report the Liquidator has not
communicated with Mr. Coughlin as he was not a director at the time of the Liquidator’s appointment. The
Official Liquidator will be communicating with Mr. Coughlin in the near future.

Communication with Creditors and Customers

425  The Liquidator's preliminary review of the Company’s records regarding its customers reflected that
immediately accessible customer contact information is not readily available. In order to identify the customer
contact information the Liquidator and his team have to undertake a detailed review of the Company'’s files
and records and ensure, so far as possible, that the information found is the most recent provided by the
customer. This review is now completed.

426  The following correspondence has been issued by the Liquidator and can be viewed on liquidation website:
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No. | Date Title & Description
1 October 4, 2019 General Letter to Service Providers/Vendors - Includes Notice of Appointment
as VL and Consent to Act

2 October 8, 2019 Notification Letter to Banks — All Banks

3 October 8, 2019 Notification Letter to Fiduciaries — All Brokers and Private Banks

POD form included.

4 October 24, 2019 Circular to Customers and/or Clients as Addressed — General letter on VL and

Copy of Orders attached

5 November 11, 2019 | Notice of Supervision of Liquidation and Appointment of Official Liquidator —

6 November 22, 2019 | Notification to Creditors of the Postponement of the Creditors Mesting

7 December 89,2018 | Notification Letter to Registered Offices of IBCs

On October 4, 2019, the Liquidator wrote to each known trade creditor of the Company notifying them of his
appointment as Voluntary Liquidator and his Consent to Act and included a Proof of Debt form for creditors to
submit to the Liquidator in respect of their claim against the Company.

On October 24, 2019, the Liquidator distributed a circular to those customers whose contact details he had
located notifying them of his appointment and providing them with tentative notice of the First Meeting. This
notification also included a Proof of Debt form to be submitted to the Liquidator in respect of the funds invested
by the customers with the Company. On November 22, 2019, the Liquidator wrote to all creditors providing
Notice of the Postponement of the First Creditors and Customers Meeting.

On November 11, 2019, the Official Liquidator provided notice of the continuation of the liquidation under the
supervision of the Court and the appointment of himself as the Official Liquidator of the Company.

On November 28, 2019, the Official Liquidator wrote to all Registered Offices for the IBCs that held fiduciary
accounts at the Company. The letter was to ensure that no actions were taken by the Directors that might
adversely impact the fiduciary assets and to seek information on the beneficial owners of the IBCs.
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431 To facilitate communication between the Liquidator and stakeholders of the Company, the Liquidator has
established a website, www.pga-liquidation.com, where stakeholders can refer from time to time for updated

information in relation to the progress of the liquidation of the Company. An email address has also been
established to facilitate faster direct communication with the Liquidator and his team to address all questions
or comments the Creditors and Customers might have - pgaliquidation@intelisysltd.com. The Liquidator and
his team have also met with and spoken with creditors and customers at their request and continue to meet
with creditors and provide information where possible.

432  The Company's website (www.pacifico-ltd.com) has been updated to reflect the appointment of the Liquidator.

Communication with the Securities Commission of the Bahamas and Financial Intelligence Unit

433  On September 19, 2019, the SCB wrote to Klein advising that pursuant to Sections 45(1) of the Securities
Industry Act and 49(1) of the Investment Funds Act, 2003, the SCB would conduct an on-site examination of
the operations of the Company commencing October 28, 2019.

4.34  On September 20, 2019, Klein wrote to Ms. Christina Rolle, Executive Director of the SCB, to ask the SCB to
select a liquidator for the Company and to advise of the Directors and Shareholders support in this effort. He
further advised of his immediate resignation as CEO of the Company and that COO was only engaged through
to September 30, 2019.

4.35  On October 3, 2019, Ms. Christina Rolle wrote to Klein approving the Company’s decision to voluntarily wind-
up its affairs subject to the winding up becoming supervised by the Court within fourteen (14) days of the
receipt of the letter. The SCB further advised of its selection of Edmund L. Rahming of Intelisys as the
Voluntary Liquidator of the Company. Mr. Rahming was copied on the letter.

4.36  On October 4, 2019, Mr. Rahming wrote the SCB providing executed copies of the notice of appointment,
consent to act, and shareholders’ resolution to place the Company into voluntary liquidation.

4.37  The Liquidator and his team are maintaining regular communication with the SCB and will continue to provide
it with updates regarding the progress of liquidation process.

4.38  The Official Liquidator wrote to the Financial Intelligence Unit on October 29, 2019 advising it of the liquidation
and that Ms. Vanasha Nadia Shearer-Butler, the Company’s Money Laundering Reporting Officer, was no
longer employed with the Company.

Intelisys
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5 Review of Financial Position

Source of Information and Limitations

5.1 The Company'’s financial information contained herein is as at September 30, 2019, unless otherwise stated,
has been prepared using information obtained from the sources described in paragraphs 1.9 and 1.10 above.

5.2 The Liquidator reiterates he has not audited any of the information received and relies on this information for
the purposes of providing a summary position to creditors and customers of the Company.

5.3 Atthe date of appointment of the Liquidator the accounting records of the Company were at least nine months
in arrears and the veracity of that information has not yet been verified. The Liquidator has concerns that the
accounting records of the Company cannot be fully relied upon.

5.4 The Liquidator has maintained a schedule of receipts and disbursements related to the liquidation since
appointment. This schedule is shown at Appendix 7.

5.5 The Liquidator has maintained a listing of accrued and unpaid expenses for the period October 2, 2019 to
November 30, 2019. The listing is shown at Appendix 8.

Analysis of Assets and Liabilities

Cash at bank

5.6 As noted above the Liquidator has identified and assumed control of Cash at bank totalling B$278,288.
Accounts Receivable

5.7 The Accounts Receivable balance includes Commissions Receivable, Due from Clients, and Other
receivables. As at September 30, 2019 the balance for Commissions Receivable was $1,299,397.
Commissions Receivable represents charges by the Company to their customers and clients in respect of
services undertaken. The Company accrues these amounts as a book entry in the individual customer
accounts and these are deducted monthly from funds invested by the customer.

58 The Liquidator anticipates adjustments to the commissions receivable balance due to the ongoing broker
reconciliation exercise.

Intelisys
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59 The balance Due from Clients and Other receivables is approximately $160,000. The Official Liquidator is in
the process of reviewing the amounts making up this balance.

Prepayments and deposits

5.10  The balance of Prepayments and deposits as at October 2, 2019 provided by the Company is $124,078. The
Liquidator is conducting a review to determine whether the prepaid amounts that can be returned to Company.

Other Assets

511  The other assets identified by the Liquidator relate to office furniture, equipment, and computers. These
assets were recorded in the Company’s accounting records as having a balance of $62,598 as at October 2,
2019. The Liquidator's team prepared an updated Fixed Asset register with cost and estimated liquidation
values.

512 A Court application was made on October 28, 2019 and a Court order granted on the same date for the sale
of the office fumiture. The successful sale of the entire furniture and equipment inventory at the Company
took place on October 30, 2019 and was at a sale price of $15,460.

Transfers and payments to Related Entities

5.13  Based on interviews with the director and staff and an initial review of records obtained by the Liquidator, the
Company paid substantial funds to and on behalf of parties directly associated with the Company. The
Liquidator has begun the review of these transactions and will provide an update at the First Creditors and
Customers meeting.

Liabilities

5.14  The Liabilities balance includes Commissions payable, Accrued expenses and Other liabilities. Based on a
review of the Company records, the Company recorded $1,015,037 in Commissions payable, Accrued
expenses and Other liabilities. The Liquidator has identified approximately $1M in Commissions payable and
approximately $200,000 in amounts due to trade creditors and a loan payable.

5.15  The Liquidator anticipates adjustments to Commissions payable and accrued expenses and other liabilities.

Intelisys
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5.16  In correspondence dated November 22, 2019, the Official Liquidator requested that creditors submit a Proof
of Debt form in respect of the amounts owing to them. This was requested early on to confirm the balances
on record at the Company. As at the date of this report, the Liquidator has received completed Proof of Debt
forms from only a few creditors.

5.17  Weunderstand an RBC visa credit card and a Xaris Mastercard credit card were used for operating expenses
of the Company. These cards have now been cancelled. The Official Liquidator will review charges to these
credit cards over a defined period to determine the benefit to the Company.

Estimated Net Realisable Value

5.18  Based on the information available to the Official Liquidator as at the date of this report, there is insufficient
information available to provide a meaningful Estimated Net Realisable Value of the assets of the Company.

Preliminary Opinion of the Liquidator

5.19  Based on initial investigations undertaken to date, it appears that the Company’s assets were segregated
from the assets of clients and customers. The assets of clients and customers were placed in segregated
accounts in the Company’s name. The Liquidator and his team have been updating the client accounting
system and will undertake a confirmation exercise to ensure the account balances of clients and customers
are up-to-date and all asset holdings accounted for.

520  Commissions receivable and commissions payable amounts are being reviewed by the Liquidator and his
team. The Commissions receivable amount (includes custody and administration fees) is collectible and once
determined will be presented to the Receiver and sanctioned by the Court for approval and payment. The
Commissions payable amount is being reviewed and will be part of the claims adjudication process.

5.21  The Official Liquidator is currently determining the anticipated cash shortfall.

5.22  The Official Liquidator will review related party transfers in detail to determine whether these payments were
appropriate given the knowledge that the Company would shortly be insolvent.

5.23  The Official Liquidator will continue reviewing the financial position and actions taken by the Company to
determine whether there has been a breach of duty by the directors of the Company.

Intelisys
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6 Assets Held by Custodians — Customer Funds

6.1 At the date of appointment, the liquidator met three (3) categories of clients for whom the Company holds
assets in custody. The three (3) categories of clients affected are those with investment solely in the Sub-
Funds in Receivership (12); those with investment holdings independent of the Sub-Funds (44); and those
with dual investment holdings (70).

6.2 The Company operated a number of accounts with custodians in a number of jurisdictions including The
Bahamas, Antigua and Switzerland.

6.3 The Liquidator has written to fourteen (14) custodians. Eight (8) have confirmed account balances of which
four (4) have a zero balance and four (4) have balances. The other six (6) custodians do not maintain balances
based on the Company's records. A listing of the custodians is shown at Appendix 9.

6.4 The Liquidator has been provided with information which shows that four (4) Custodians maintained accounts
on behalf of the Company as at the date of liquidation, and that the balance of these accounts as at September
30, 2019 was $74,880,861.

6.5 The Liquidator has concerns regarding the accuracy of the Company’s accounting records. Since the date of
their appointment, the Liquidator’s staff and those Company staff who were re-employed by the Liquidator
have been carrying out a broker reconciliation to update the client accounting records of the Company. This
exercise is ongoing as at the date of this report.

6.6 From a review of the Company’s accounting records there appear to be a number of client accounts which
hold a negative balance. The Official Liquidator and his team will be pursuing the negative balance
accountholders/debtors for the amounts owed to the Company.

6.7 On October 8, 2019, the Voluntary Liquidator wrote to all known custodians, who maintained accounts on
behalf of the Company to nofify them of the appointment of the Voluntary Liquidator, to request that no more
activity take place on these accounts, and requesting information in relation to the assets held by the
custodians, including:-

(a) Balances of accounts in the name of the Company, including any cash and custodial accounts;

(b) Details on any security held for balances, including third party guarantees; and

Intelisys

As at November 30, 2019 Oﬁ 0 0 3 6 :



First Report of the Official Liquidator
6 Assets held by Custodians — Customer Funds

(c) Any pending and executed trades as at the date of the appointment of the Liquidator.

6.8 In some instances, the Custcdians were slow to respond, but the majority of Custodians have now provided
the requested information to the Liquidator as detailed below.

The amount of funds held by Custedians as at September 30, 2019 as follows:

Market Value of Securities Net Cash Balance Total Value
(US$) (US$) (US$)
31,705,729 43,175,132 74,880,861

6.9 The Liquidator notes the discrepancies between the Custodians’ records of the holdings in the Company's
name and the Company’s records and make the following comments in relation to their preliminary review
with the Custodians: -

a) Valuation differences exist between the records of the Company and records of the Custodians. The
Liquidator has not yet taken steps to resolve these differences as at the date of this report.

b) Securities at Swissquote are reflecting an overstated position on monthly statements due to an error in
valuation calculation which occurred post transfers in April 2019. The Liquidator raised this issue with
Swissquote and is currently awaiting revised statements.

c) A number of the stocks held by Custodians are illiquid and may be difficult to sell.

d) There would appear to be limited or litle documentation of instructions given by or communication with
customers. Customers of the company fall into the category of IBC's and Individuals some of whom
would have appointed the Company as management advisor with power of attorney rights. At this time
the Official Liquidator is unable to determine if the Company abused those rights or acted within the best
interest of the client.

e) Given the inflated NAVs the potential for preferential treatment of investors exists. Those that have
redeemed their holdings early will have profited more than those who still have holdings in the Sub-Funds.

f) The customer asset holdings are held in Omnibus accounts between four Custodians. The accounting
for the holdings across the Custedian omnibus accounts is maintained within the company’s ATRIUM-
Finamic wealth management software. As previously stated, the system required updating as at
September 30, 2019. The Liquidator's team has been updating the ATRIUM-Finamic system and
conducting a broker reconciliation exercise. This exercise continues.

Intelisys
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6.10  The balance held in the Company's Custodian omnibus accounts for clients and customers as at September
30, 2019 and October 31,2019 is as follows: -

Entity Total as at Sep. 30, Total as at Oct. 31, 2019
2019 (USS$) (US$)
Swissquote 34,296,729 34,296,729
Credinvest 25,228,811 25,228,811
Deltec 15,323,255 2,082,651
NIB 32,067 32,067
Total 74,880,861 61,640,257
Balance related to Sub-Funds 67,446,130 55,312,967

6.11  The Liquidator believes that further financial and legal analysis is required to determine the amounts owed to

customers and the amounts owed by customers to the estate due to early redemptions.

Intelisys
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7 Conclusion

71 Whilst significant work has been undertaken to date by the Liquidator, the liquidation is still at an early stage.
The Official Liquidator's focus since his appointment has been identifying the precise causes of the Company’s
failure and the specific factors leading to the liquidation of the Company. This information is documented in
the Background section of this report. The Liquidator has also worked on identifying and safeguarding the
assets held by the Company, taking control of all Company records, and interviewing the Company’s director
and current and former staff.

1.2 The Official Liquidator believes that further financial and legal analysis is required to determine the financial
position of the Company vis-a-vis the Sub-Funds, what improprieties (if any) occurred, what potential claims
(if any) the Company has and should pursue, and the amounts held for or owed to customers. The Official
Liquidator intends to recommend to the creditors and customers at the first meeting several strategies/road
maps for conducting and concluding the liquidation.

7.3 Inlight of the further work which will be required, itis too early to predict the likely eventual return to customers
and creditors although this should be clearer upon the completion of the proposed road map. The Official
Liquidator will, of course, keep all customers and creditors informed of any significant developments in this
regard and in relation to any and all applications to the Court, and all inquiries from any governmental bodies
or other third parties, all reasonable steps will be taken to protect the confidentiality of all customer information
under the Official Liquidator’s control.

Dated December 16, 2019

Edmund Rahming

Intelisys
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1-Resolutions to appoint Voluntary Liquidator and for liquidation to be continued under the supervision of The Supreme
Court of The Bahamas

PACIFICO GLOBAL ADVISORS LTD.
WRITTEN RESOLUTION OF THE SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

We, being all of the shareholders of Pacifico Global Advisors Lid. (‘the Company’), a Company incorparated and
opereting mwmemamcommmﬂfmesmmdohmbymmmmam.ptacecrpurpose

of @ meating and consent to, approve and adopt the following resolution pursuant to the Comgpany's Articles of
Associaticn on the 2 day of October AD. 2019;

IT IS RESOLVED THAT:

1) That,mwrdmwithmemmpamesktmdmmmc«mwbewmmwmupammat‘édmundL.
Rahming of INTELISYS, 2 Caves Profassional Center, Caves Village, West Bay Street & Blake Road, P.0. Box SP-

64064, Nassau, Bahamas be appointed as Voluntary Liquidator with the powear to act for the purposa of winding up the
&ffairs of the Company.

2) ThaltheVdmwmmWsmmmmmmmammmmmmmWMMm

In the winding up of the estate tn accordance with the Companies Winding Up Rufes 2011 and In accondance with the
engagemant and indemnily lelters dated October 2 October, 2018,

Dated the 2+ day of October AD, 2019

'ﬂ! .( { W

v
Valora Investments Ltd. Memér:AmzroKlein
Member;

By its authorized signatory

4
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As at November 30, 2019 :@ 0 0 0 4 0



First Report of the Official Liquidator

8 Appendix

Intelisys

PACIFICO GLCBAL ADVISORS LTD. {In Voluntary Liquidation)
WRITTEN RESOLUTION OF THE SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COAMPANY

We, balng e of the shareholdars of Pacifico Global Advisors Lid. {in Voluniary Liguidattion)"the Company’), a Company
incorporated and aparating under tha kaws of the Commonwealth of The Bahamas do hersby watve a notice of time,

placa or pumoss of a mesting and consent to, pprova and azdopt the foleaing resolutions pursuant to the Company's
Astices of Assaciation an this 224 day of Octabsr A D, 2019,

IT IS RESOLVED THAT:

1) The sharehoiders unanimousty consent to tho voluntery Equidation being pul under tha supsnvision of the
Suprame Court of The Bahemas,

2) The sherehoiders unanimously consent t Edmund Rehming of INTELISYS, 2 Cavas Professional Canter,
Caves Vilage, Wes| Bay Street & Blake Road, P.0, Box SP-84084, Naseau, The Behamas being appointed
asmunu&mmfmcmmymetepcwbwasd'mw by the Suprems Cotst of The Bahzmas,

Dated the 22~ day of October AD. 2018
) /
tdsmber: Valora tnvestmants Ltd, Member: Arturo Kleln

By its authorized signatery

As at November 30, 2019
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2 - Certificate of Incorporation

TILE COMPANIES ACT 1992

) Golifeato of Sncorforation s

L JACINDA P, BUT

\

'LER, Registrar General for The Commonwealth of The Bahn;ﬁq'ff Sau, BP* c‘
(W '
do hereby certify that @ Memorandum of Association of Ao

PACIFICO GLOBAL ADVISORS LTD,
has this day been registered in m y office under the provisions of the Compani

es Act 1992, Whereby
the said Parties have

become and are an tncorporated Company under the

* name and style of

PACIFICO GLOBAL ADYISORS LD,

And [ further certify that the Liability of the said Companyy is Limited,
Given under my,

hand and seal of office at the City of Nassau the 30th day of September, 2011.

Given under my hand and seal
Al Nassau in the Commonwealth

of The Bahamas,
Arehoiastion Code: UQS68] VI

Intelisys
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SECURITIES COMMISSION OF THE BAHAMAS

CERTIFICATE OF REGISTRATION

Pursuant to Part VI, Soction 69(4) of the Sacurities Industry Act, 2011 and Part VI of the
Securities Industry Regulation, 2012

Daren Charles Seymour
is hereby registered as
Trading Representative
Advising Representative
Discretionary Management Representative
with
Pacifico Global Advisors Ltd,
to carry on securitiss activitios in and from the Commenwealth of The Bahamas, subject to the

terms and conditions specified in the Securities Industry Act, 2011 and the Securities Industry
Regulations, 2012.

Effective this 17" day of July, 2015

Signed: %

Executive Director

Sears m.lgu:;.uu_u SiiEraasasd

RO sy

Byl Byl i5

g o s
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SIA-F113

SECURITIES COMMISSION OF THE BAHAMAS
CERTIFICATE OF REGISTRATION

Pursuant to Part VI Section 69(1) of the Securities Industry Act, 2011 and Part VI of the Securities
Industry Regulations, 2012,
Pacifico Global Advisors Ltd.
(Previously licenced under Section 22 of the Securilies Industry Act, 1995 on the 4® day of May, 2010)
is hereby registered as a Firm

Managing Securities (as at 30" day of Decomber, 2011)
Dealing as Agent or Principal
Arranging Deals in Securities
Advising on Securities
to carry on securities aclivities in and from the Commonwealth of The Bahamas, subject to the terms
and conditions specified in the Securities Industry Act, 2011 and the Securities Industry Regulations,
2012,

Effective this 11" day of September, 2015

Executive Director

Intelisys
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SIA-F113-09

( 3
=4 SECURITIES COMMISSION OF THE BAHAMAS

CERTIFICATE OF REGISTRATION

Pursuant to Regulation 40(1) of the Securities Industry Regulation, 2012
Arturo Klein
is hereby registered as
Chief Executive Officer
with
Pacifico Global Advisors Ltd.

10 carry on securities activities in and from the Commonwealth of The Bahamas, _s!.mject to the
terms and conditions specified in the Securilies Indusiry Acl, 2011 and the Securities Industry
Regulations, 2012.

Effective this 14'" day of March, 2018

Uk

Executive Director

Signed:

SIA-F113-11

SECURITIES COMMISSION OF THE BAHAMAS
CERTIFICATE OF REGISTRATION
Pursuant fo Regulalion 40(2) of the Securities Industry Regulation, 2012

Vanasha Nadia Butler
is hereby registered as
Compliance Officer

with
Pacifico Global Advisors Ltd.

to carry on securities aclivities in and from the Commonwealth of The Bahamas, subject to the

terms and conditions specified in the Securities Industry Act. 2011 and the Securities Industry
Regulations, 2012.

Effective this 3" day of September, 2018

Signed: —C{kﬁ__\_

Executive Director

Intelisys
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4 — Commission and Fee Schedule
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Global (e
Movsars 19

PACIFICO GLOBAL ADVISORS FEE SCHEDULE OF BANKING SERVICES

Pricing and Services Standard Alltn

ACCOUNTS

Account closing USD 2,500.00 USD 2,500.00

A Closed witht lve months of being opened will be charged a closing fee of USD 3,000.00.

In the event the client's account become Inactive or dormant, the official fee schedule of PGA will

continue to apply. In addition PGA will charge the client the cost of investigations for the special

treatment and monitoring of inactive and dormant accounts.

RELATH HIP IREMENTS

Clients are expected to maintain a minimum of USD ??2??????(or equivalent) in t and or

cash with PGA. Sufficient cash must be maintained on all accounts at all times to cover four quarters

of Management and Custody fees.

CUSTQDY FEES

Custody fees p.a 0.75% 1.00%

minimum per annum per portfolio USD 3,000.00 USD 4,500.00

The Custody fees includes the ¥ and dy services {charges for safekeeping,

, booking exp , capltal pay and coupon coll It will be debited

quarterly based on the total gross assets of the portfolio.

TRANSACTION BASED FEES

Third party Commission will be applied in addition to the Transaction Based fees. Duties and charges

{such as stamp duty, stock exchange charges or charges {levied by a fund) are not included In the

fees and will be charged separately without any surcharges.

SECURITIES AND MONEY MARKEY

Bonds nin: USD 250 0.60% 0.60%

Equlties nin: USD 300 0.80% 0.80%

Options nin: USD 250 100.00 100.00

MM Funds nin: USD 250 0.30% 0.30%

Bond Funds ntn: USD 250 0.60% 0.60%

Structured Products nin: USD 250 0.60% 0.60%

Equity Funds nin: USD 300 0.80% 0.80%

Balanced funds nin: USD 250 0.70% 0.70%

Hedge Funds nin: USD 600 1.00% 1.00%

Fiduciary Deposits 0.20% 0.20%

FOREX

USD 0-10,000 on purchases and sales 1.50% 1.50%

USD 10,000 - 50,000 on purchases and sales 0.75% 0.75%

above 0.50% 0.50%

TRANSFERS

Securitles transfer in UsD 100 USD 100

Securities transfer out USD 200 USD 200

PAYMENTS ORDERS

Internal Transfers free free

Up to 49999 USD 100 USD 100

Up to S0°000 to 99'999 USD 150 USD 150

Up to 100'600 to 499'999 USD 200 USD 200

More than 500'000 USD 250 UsD 250

NEIRMA’ AND

Bank reference letters USD 250 USD 250

Audit confirmations/legal UsD 250 USD 250
USD 250/hour  USD 250/hour

{min fee USD {min fee USD

Tax documentation 500.00) $00.00)

Courlers USD 100 USD 100

Swift confirmations Usb 75 usb 75

Documentation preparation USD 250/hour  USD 250/hour

CONCEIRGE SERVICES

A charge based on time spent will be required for all services offered at the request of the client

Other Fees

Cancellations, corrections, reimb of dupl d pay and queries regarding

executed payment orders will be charged based on costs. Other fees charged by third party banks

that are not covered by our

p may be sub tly charged.

PGA reserves the right to change its fees and services at any time without prior notice.
Only the most important fees are given here.

Effective July 1, 2019

Intelisys
As at November 30, 2019
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5- Audited Financial Statements as at December 31, 2017 and Draft Unaudited Financial Schedule showing December
31, 2018 results

PACIFICO GLOBAL ADVISORS LIMITED

Financial Statements
For The Year Ended December 31, 2017
And Independent Auditors’ Report

PACIFICO GLOBAL ADVISORS LTD.

Table of Contents

Page
Independent Auditors™ Report 1-2
Statement of Financial Position 3
Statement of Profit And Loss And Other Comprehensive Income 4
Statement of Changes In Equity 5
Statement of Cash Flows 0
Notes ta Financial Statements 7-13
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Toilee Sharehalder of Paeiliva CGlobal Advisars Liad:

dhmindon

We have ambited the secompanying Hoancial stilements of Pacifiee Global Advisnes Lid Pl
Cernpany ™l which comgrise the wsternent of financial position as ot Deceniber 31, 2017, and the
statermsent af compeehensive income. @xemen of champes in exguiity and statement of cash ows for
the year then emded. amd notes e dhe Tisncial ststements. wcluding o summans of signiflcant
deciaunting pelicies and ativer explanstory gotes,

I wnr apinion the fnanemd statements presen) fwicly. in ol praresal re spects, the fsarca ! position of

e Lompany as m December 30, 2007, and #is Gnancinl perfimmance arxd ity cash Mlows toe the year
ther emdedd in acecockiace with Incemarinial [Fnancial Reporting Standards.

sty four Dhpdindvn

We conduated our andit i sccondance with lirersarional Siandanss o Audizing. Olur eesponsibilities
e those sincands are furtber deserilasd in the Assditog s Hesporsibilities tor the Audit of the
Finareial Stagrnents ol s report. We are wdependent of the Company in aveordunce with
Uk Intermtional Eiics Staedards Boand fior Acconntiets” Code ol Ethics for Professsanal
Accouneanis (JESEA Codel, and we have iGled our other clliwal responsibilities in socordance
with these requircments and the [DSHA Code. We belive that the aseliv cvidence we hove olaained s
suflicivnt arkl appeeqiriate 1o provide 3 hasis fie OUF AR

Resgenvibilitien of Wanwmomens aod Thove Chasged with Gowrrance for the Flaawcial
Srateaningy

Il renl s respanaibde for the preparsioon and i presentatan of these Bnancial sessments in
sweerdanee with Isternational Financial Repartivg Standants, arx! loe such interml comnal as
managemend determines & necesaoy e enable the frregaention of finane sl stabeaments thil are frec
Irom magersal misstntenzng, whether due Teaid o crror

I preparing the liasncial stateies, m

BRI i respersible far assessing i Company's ability
ancern, disclesing, as applicabée, warters related 1 Eing concem and usin
ol nocounting anless managemsy cithes intends i
s, of hies o nealistic 2ltersive bt 1o <y sa

10 COBEIR ¥4 3 Boang

e zoing concern busi liuadate the Company or

1D Celse apoy

Those charged with governanes are resportible far overseeing the Comspany's lancial reporting
process

Financial Advisory & Consulting Services

Intelisys

As at November 30, 2019
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Awiltors Respansibitivy fov the Audir of he Flrancial Ssateistents

Garr objeclives are o oblzin reasonable usswramce sbout whether the financial stitements as a whole
are free from materfal misstatenenl. whether dus o frand o crror, amd 0 mssae an awditor's repord
that inchudes o apminy. Ressurssble assurunce i o bigh level of sssurance, bul is not a guarantee
that un awdit canducied in accordance with Intesnational Standards an Auditing will always detexs &
muterial misstatement when it exists, Misstutemenss can agise fom froud or erree snd ane cansidered
rnaterial if, individunlly or in che aggregate. they could reasorbly be expected to influence the
ceoanmic decisions of users ken oo the Basis of these fnancial stalemers.

Ax part of an awdil in secondance with Iisternational Seandards on Auditing. we exencise professional
Judgment and maintsin professianal skepticism throughou the gudin, We also—

»  Identify and nssess the risks of material misstatement of the lnancial statznesnts, whether due
to lruwd o e design and perfonn sudh procedunes respunsive to those risks; and abeain
audil evidence that is sufficient and approgrrinte o provide a basis far our opinicon. The risk of
nit delecting n materinl missiatemenit asulling ffom frand is higher than for one resudling
from errar. o5 fowd  ossy  ivelve  collusion.  forgery.  intentioral  omissions,
misrEpResenLaticns, of i aservide of itermil controt.

»  Obeain an wndestanding of fnternal control relevanz 1o the audiy in order o desipn amlil
procedires 1R are appeopriate in the circumstanoes, huz nat for the purpese ol expressing an
apsnian an thw effectiseness of the Company s interna) contol.

*  Evalusie the upprogrinieness of accounting podicies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

¢ Cenclude cov the approprigicncss ol munagement’s use of the poing concem busis of
accuunting and, based 0 the audit evidence ublained. whether a materinl URCCHaNNLY €xisls
related w events or comlitions that inay cast significant doubi an she Company's ability
coatinee ns a gaing cangens, I we vomclude thal o material uncenaingy exisis, we are
required o drow ptenticn v our audivers report Jo the relaced disclosures I the Ondanciad
stalements or, i soch disclosures are imadequate, ta madily our apinicn, Our conclusions are
busexd an she audit cvidence oleaimed up o the date of oue mxlitoe's repart. However, fulure
evens ar coauditions ray canse the Company e ceaxe to continue as o going concern.

¢ Evalie the overnll prosentation. structure, and ¢ontem of the Fnanceal statements, including
the disckesures, mid whether the financiol saements represemt the underlying transactions
and ¢vents in a sanner thal schieves fair presenzntan,

We eommunicats with those ehianged with governznee regarding. atone ather matlers, the plonned
seope and 1iming of the audit and significant nudit findings, i luding any sgnificunt deficiencies in
irerital conrol than we wlentily during our andit.

K me awo -é‘(, .

Nassau, Babwmos
May 13, 2018

Intelisys
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PACIFICO GLOBAL ADVISORS LTD.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2017
Expressad in United ‘S‘»t_arrvar; Dollars)

2017 2016
ASSETS:

Cash and cash equnakents (Nobe 1) 3 64259 3 403.784

Accamts recenahle (Notes 4 and 9) 1988048 1137432

Premid expenses and de pusits 5,650 26449

Invesiments (Noie 53 159332 153337

Progeenty, plant and cogigvmaent (Nres: 6 K2272 RALN]
Totad Assets 5 2!927!538 S 1 5.79'0!62 7
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES:

Avgried expenses and aher linldfties (Notes 7 ared 9 § 2W2210 3 1219584
Totul Liabitities L 2m22g 1219584
EQUITY:

Share capitnl 25000 254H0

Comrined syrplus 495, 1w 495,100

Retnived carnings (Note< 9 amd 1) 215228 NIALR]

Tmal cquigy 735328 5714642
Totul Lizkilities and Shareholde r's Equity S 240,858 s 1,7H,627

See nccempanying notes 10 the Fisancial ssaeinyenis,

These finencinl stnements arg approved by the Board of Dircctars an Moy 15. 2018,
]

f
T 1 - “"f&.
e S .
., &«kﬁd
Dizectar Y Il)im:‘my
3

Intelisys
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PACIFICO GLOBAL ADVISORS LTD.

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

{Expressed in United States Dollars)

INCOME
Fes awome (Notes B and 9
{gher incoms:
I tesest imeonu:
Ureealisedd g by on insestments

Total incame

EXTENSES
Contrnissicrs (Note 9)
Manzying Direcing's fees {Notg )
Salpees and etrphover lencfits (Note 9)
Prafessinal pind el tiees
Custonlian fees
Travel amd entertiament
Rert and utilities
Remirs 2nd maimemnee
Lxense nrxl permgs
Bark interest and seevice chppes
Fureign exchange kws
Insurarce
Offze suppbes and equipmennz
Depreciition (Note 6)
Miscellameous experses

Tatal expenses

NET AND TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

See secampartying notes o the finpneial statemens.

As at November 30, 2019

2017 2016
$ BTS2 S5 7123423
AT A5 1 26 CKHy
9EN) N7
L5994 29840
9217017 790,834
6NTIHS8 4612090
10320077 996,593
540574 $10389
303 329543
34,008 136.727
91,336 SO.034
®231 63204
378 S1744
63607 26,100
16,09 32310
17202 54240
8707 23941
144 208
15.437 13963
: 73
302,732 6.959.779
S__4l4.288 5 331,058

060052
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PACIFICO GLOBAL ADVISORS LTD.

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017
(Expressed in United States Dollars}

(Acctimuisied
deleldy
Numsberof Shore Contributed  retained
Stares  Capitul  Swplas enrmings Total

Bafince as ul December 31, 2015 300 3 300§ 50N § 0 2§ 23wuEe
Net an ot compretwisies incoons - o - 131,053 XIS
Batnce as ot December 31, 2006 500 35000 95,100 NN R IR § N1% 1
Divadeids decbred wmd paid (Note L0y . - - (2500000 & 1 2500K0K0%
Net and tednl comprehensive incoisye - - - 414285 414288

Balence as at December 31,2017

SIS0 § 495000 3 KT8 $3SITN

See accxunprinying retes 1o the Nnarcial statemenis

Intelisys

As at November 30, 2019 O GO 0 5 3
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PACIFICO GLOBAL ADVISORS LTD.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

(Expressed in United States Dollars)

2017 2016
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVETIES
Net and wital comprefensive ncame 5 414285 % 331055
Adpsstments foe ilems no e Mecling coshe
Urecalised gnin (5995 (29840
Depracintim expense 13437 13963
Cash provided hy operntians belare
churges in aperating assels aml Eabfitas 423,727 JL517H
Changes in operating usssets and liabililivs
Incresse in aocounts ceceivabhe 198531.236) (2570
Irensdse in aceoanls payable a7 524 478,724
{hnenase Mdeerease i prepeid experses (X 561) 31,587
Net eash pruvided by opersting uclivities 516556 212513
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITY
Puehase of propsay., plam ord equignmem (27744 ___t6d48h
Net cash used im investing actfvity 127.744) 16450
CASH FLOWS FIROM FINANCING ACTIVITY
Dividersls poat o A2500Hh .
Net eash used in financing acciviy { 250JXKD -
Ner increasc Im cash angd cash equivale s 238.882 AN
Cash aeal eush cquivale nes, boginnitg ul vear 3,784 |97.T51
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, ENTFQF YEAR b 642,5% § $03,TH4

See accompznying nodes 1o the fimanciol stazements,

Intefi
/{Isealtsl‘:lzvember 30, 2019 Q 0 0 0 5 4
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PACIFICO GLOBAL ADVISORS LTD,

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 34, 2017

{Exprossed in United States Dolars)

1. GENERAL

Pacifico Glabat Advisors Lil. ithe “Company”} was incorpomted wxler the kaws of The
Cammanwenlth of The Rabamus an Septembar 30, 2011, The principal business activity of the
Company includes nanaging securitics. dealing s agent o principal, arranging deals in
seeuritaes and advising on secueitws, Efective Seperber 11, 2015 the Company received ils
Broker dealer livewse,

The regsiseered office of the Company is Lenss Puten Corperate Services. 3 Buysicle Executive
Pagk, West Bay Sieet. Nassau. N.P.. Babsmas, The Campany's principal place of business is
RoyalStar Hease, Joliy F. Kennedy Drive. Massan, NP Buhamus wilh its pusstal acklress being
S8-19371.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The princigal sooounting policies applied m the preparntion of these financiol stalements are ret
aut below, These poliles have been consistenily applied 1o oll the vezrs presenied, unless
allrerwise sated,

a) Seatement ey ¢ e

These financinl stadements ane prepared in acconkinee with Infernational Firancial Reporting
Sandarcts IIFRS) gnd inerpretaions adoptasd by the Intemational Accounting Sanndapds
Board (1ASB1.

) Hrsis of srevsirresarns
These Msanclal sapanents bsve been prepared under the histarical cos hasis,

<) Forelgn curreay teavalitiae

All Atz b the finuncial stabemenss ace expressed in Loied Sinwes doldars, the
('u:unmm}-'s functivnal and reporting currency. Foecign eisrensy assets 20 liabililies have
bt tramsdated imte United Stoes doltars ot the moes of exchunge ruling at year erxl.

Tramsactions. denoeminnted i foreign currencies have been trznslated inse United States
dollars wsing mees of exchange a1 the date of the wansaction. Al resuhing esclampe
differences are reeoeksd i et income in the starement of polie gnd foss amd other

cemprehensive ome, The basis for transtation of Bahamion dellars into Litited States
dollars s nt par.

i} Bevenue Recwgmison

Revenue is recagnized 1o the extent hat it is probable that the scaramic bepefits will Now
o the Company and the revenine can be rel iably measuned,

Intelisys
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¢)  Use of exrlunvses amd judgements

The prepamtion of finsncial stolemenes in conformity with 1FRS nequinss miaragement o
make judgements, esimates aml assumplicns that atfect the application of accounting
puolicies and the reported amounts on assets, liabilities, income and expenses, Actunl resulis
may diller lnom these eslimates.

Estimabes ard anderlying sssumptions ane reviswed on an ongoing basis. Revisions w
accouming estimates e recegniand in the perivd in which the esimates arc revised amd in
any fulene period affeciad,

B Fivanclal bestromenss - A financial instremen is any codract that gives tise 10 both 8
finaecial ssset of one entenpeize ard o Brancist Hubility or cyuity of mnctlyer enterprise.

fie Classificarun

Financial ivstraments include financial assels and isancial labililbes. Financial assels
Uit anc chgsiticd as luans and receivables include cash and cash equivalents and
aceounts reecivable. Financizl linbilities that are not at fair value through profit or boss
enclude acenand espenses and other Hubilities.

F05 Recagearioast

Ihe Company revognizes limncial mstruments on the day they becone n pany ta the
costractunl priovisivns ol the instruments,

i Moo

Financial instruments are mensured indtially 2 fair vatue (ansaction price) plus. i ihe
case ol a financial asset or financial lzhilicy it a1 fhir valee through profla or loss,
Irunsaction costs thet ore directly anrshueahde 1o the acquisition of issue of the fsancial
uswel ar finuncial liahitity. Transcrion costs on fnancial assets and Mnamcial lssbilities
al Eair value through profit or loss are expensed innsediately. shile on other Gnancial
instruments they are amonised.

Subsequent to initial recognition financial nsseis classified as loans and receivaliles are
carricd ot amanised cox using the effective interest rate meghod, ess Intpairnent
lusises, il any.

Financial nssets clussified as iair value throagh profit ar loss ane carried ot fnir salue,
with charges in fnir value cecopniasd in net inveme in the statemnent of profit and loss
andd ather copprehensive inconie.

Finnnecinl Habiliries, ather than those a8 fir vaiwor troegh peotit or Jass. are mensurad
at nmartised cost using the efeetive intercst rase meihod.

five  Lervcigmition

The Company derecognises 3 fisanciol assed when the cuntractual rights to the cash
flaws from the asset expine, oo when 1%y transfer the rights to receive the contracius!
cash flows in o rasnetion in which substungially all of the risks and rewsrds of
ownership of the flnancs) asset are trumsferned, or when they neither transfer nor
relain substnngially all of the fisks and resands of vwnegship and do not rerain contiol
over the wransfereed assel. Any interest in such derecognised firancial gssels thal is
eremed or retdimed by the Compary is necognised as o separate nsset or linbslizy.

The Company derecagnises a financial liability when their contmctuyl vhligutions are
dusebrrged or cuncetled. or expired.

Intelisys
As at November 30, 2019
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vl DNvclecures perloiring fo foir valses foe finaew il inirwne iy
The Company mueasures Fair values usang tlte following fair valus higearchy;

* Level I Quicted merkel price (anpdinssedd) inoan aciive markel fic an sdentical
instrunent,

e Level 2: The fzir value of financil instruments noet tracks! in an active market is
determined by esing valuation techniges. The fair vatue of the Fimanciol
instruments within this cxepory have been estimated using the present value
methad. The Compuny has o financial instruments categarkoed at this leved.

*  Level 3 Valuation sechniques using signiliennt uncbservable inputs, This catepory
includes all insieuments where he valugion sechmique Teelidcs inputs ot based
on observable data il the unobsanable inpuas have a signilicant effect an the
instruments valuation. This calegory incbudes instrurnends that are valued hased ar
yuotedd prives for similur instromsents whvene significant unohservahbe adjustments
o assunipions are reguired B ellect diflerences tetween the instruments. The
Compuny has mw fnancial instruments cabegorized ot this level,

g Cash and cush squivatones - Cash and cash equivnlems sre carried 5 eost in the statemend of
financial pasition.

For 1he purpisce of the sttement of cash flows. cash and cash aquivabents are comprised of
cash on hand, bank cumret socount and fixed dequisit with argingl maiuriny of theee (3)
mandhs o fuss,

% Aocanims recehadle - Accounis reccivable ane stated al cost. less an alkwance for tnd debes
Basl dedis are woilten ol when identified.

O Investmerrs - Investmens are casried &1 Eair value i the sigtensent ol finuncial pasition.
Interest incorme, changes in mackel value oc gains and losses on sales ane recagnized in the
statement of proflc nnd loss and other comprebensive income.

£ Propeey, mant ond oquipiweny - Propeay plant and cyuspment are stated ol cost less
accumulated deprecintion and. it approprrae, il losses. Expenditure is capilafized
anly when it increnses the fusune eeonomic benelits embuodied in the property and equipment.
Al ather expenditure s recognised in the staement of profit aml ks amd  other
comprehensive income as on expense as Iiwtured, Depneciation is charged 1o the stabemern
of prafit und liss and ather comprehensive income an a skraighi-fine busis vver the estimated
usefuld lives of she assets as follows:

Furniiune and equipiment 10 yeurs

Compuger svstem 3 years

Any realicod gains or losses on disposals of propesy. plaim and exuiptient are Leken o the
stptemens of profit ur loss and sther comprehensive income i e vear in which they oceur.

&) Turpatrauens of Fimscia! Avsety - An assessment is made al ench stagement of fisancial
pesitian date 10 deterntine whwther there is abjective evidence that 2 financial as3eT Moy b
impaired. IF sueh evidemce exists, e camrying smount of the asset is redueed 10 its estimated
recavemble amouns el disectly or through the use of an allowance pecawnt and e
amauat of the loss is inchaded in the statemem of profit and kiss uned gher comprehensive
incame, Na such allowires hase been neconded at December 3 1,207,

) Assers amider memagement - Fiduciary acconms and assets of eusbomens anc nal included in
these financial stulernents as they are not assets. of the Company.

9

Intelisys
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ny) Retated Party - A party is relatod W the Company il dircetly, or indirectly, throgl i ar
mnre ingernexdingbes. the pany:

Contrals, i contralled by, or is under ecanmon cominol with, the Company;

Has an interest in the Cemmpany that gives i signilicant inflesnee over the Compaisy:
Is u member of ihe key management personnel. including divectors and officers of the
Cumpany und shareholders:

v, s an entity that is control ked. jointly controlled or sigriticantly influenced by, ar for
which sigmilicant voling power in swch entities resides wilh, directly or indinectly, any
individual retirred 1o ahove.

(2o W

J. CABH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash exeivabents consast of the following:

2017 2016
Currert accoums 3 A58 % 393742
Ferrn deposit 114138 10042

s 642,596 S 403,784
Mt 2w o s £

Included in cash and cash squivatents is $72_548 {2016: $14.0425 which is pledged as security
lar conpornee eredin cards,

4. ACCOUNTS RECEIWVABLE

Aceaunts receivahle cansists of the following:

2017 2
Commissions o fees meeeivable £ 1923443 § LITOS4%
D froen o hents 2R.041 6536
Olher o XT3 22T

$_1UBR6Rs § 1137452

6. INVESTMENTS
lnvestments censist of the fillowing:
07 2016

Cost Market Cost Markst
Anghygoll Hiddages PLC 5125 Dize Augist | a2 § O Juslr 5 5208 S Jnsm § Hio)2

ToMrbde LS Ine. 6 37380 Die Atarch 1, 200§ 40425 X34 NS 5329
Tramucean inc. 6373 Due Docomber 13, 301 s RS 314 43308 SIS

$ 4338 § 13851 5 145,9¢  § 153,337

Intelisys
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6. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Property. plant and eyuipmcnt consisg of the Following:
Fumniture &  Computer

Equipment Svstens Torl
Cosr
Asatf 3 December 2H3 $ Tz 3 L0 (] B 3 20423
Addiions G AR - G480
Asof 3| Decermnber XMn TN 201 W3
Adlditawe 25,283 2461 X
As af M December 207 % 298S § 11662 8§ 124,647
Accamoluted De preciztion
Asaf M Mecomber 2005 5 654§ adol § FI975
Deprecation expense for the year 1303 (] 13,963
As af 31 Necember XI5 14137 12301 928
Deprevitim expense fie e your L6024 6l 13437
As ol 31 December 017 3 12763 % 1962 % 42378
Net hook value:
v 3 4 ; p 4
As of 31 December 2016 5 63,565 S 64 S5 &9.908
As of 31 December 2007 S 8Bp22 § 2,050 % 2,272
7. ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER LIABILITIES
Averued expenses und ether liubilities consist of the fpllowing:
2017 2018
Conutibsions payabke t 180244 % 1125107
Oibar Mt 3on WA??

5 2i92210 S 1,219,884

T

8. FEE INCOME

Fee income consists of the fllowing:

2017 2016
Managemens Fees - Funds 3 4A6THM 3 1434363
Rerossssions | 31E9RS 2438
hMenagernent Fees - Clens 12701619 Lisdune
Brakemge 1214, 785 55385t
Cusgody 713,759 3, i

S 89923,152 7,123,623

Intelisys
As at November 30, 2019

000059



First Report of the Official Liquidator
8 Appendix

9. RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND TRANSACTIONS
The Company hal the folbowing reluted parly badances and transactions:

217 2016

Baferces:

Acoounts receivable 5 1337873 5 143,271
Accrued expensss and oter liabeliies S LB6D.SH9 S Bi4dIB
Trivsmsoer Wowss

Retained Earags - Dividends $ ML $ -
Fa Inciome 7,6 S_1.034.363
Commissiavs 5 335506 S 2853379
Managig Dinectors fees pind expenses 1 1!.m32.§(_)?? s 996593
Key managenent compensation § 3,574 5 270000

10. VIDEND

Dhrinng the yesr ended Dasember 31, 017, the Boerd of Directars of the Company dex lared arvl
paxd a dividend of $250,000 (2016: $NIL)L

11. ASSETS UNDER MANAGEMENT

Assels mwanuged by the Company in a fduciary capacity as of December 31, 2017 1oealbed
$34074.348 (2016 $333.715.381 5.

12. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company bes exponure 1o various types of risks fram their use of finnncinl instruments, The
MOSE smptant Iyvpes of Mvarcial risk 8¢ which the Company is expesed ane credic risk, liquidity
tisk and curremy risk.

The nature and extent of the linancial instruments autsizaulang at the reporting dare and the risk
nanagement polixies employed by the Company 2re discussed below,

Credil, rigk

Credlt risk is the risk that a courterpurty 1o 0 financial instnewem will fasl dischunge an
obbigation ar commitment that it hus entered into with the Company, The Compasy’s exposure
to credit risk is pimarily concemruted with its cash and cash cquivalents. commissions
recelvable amd invesunent balumces.  With respest 10 its cash and cash equivalenis 2nd
commission receivahle kalances the Company mitignies this risk 4s the lances sne held with or
due froem eredit wortly financial institutipns.

Liguidity risk

Leyuidity risk is the risk that the Company may enecunter difficulty in meeting ohliyations
arising Ircun their financial linhilities, The Company™s upproach te managing liguidicy is 1o
ensre, s far as possible. thar the aramiriy of its Binancinl assets coincide with the matwrities of
fts financial Labilities. Specifically, the senlement of iIs commissions pavable ix linked nmd
conditionat on receipt ol its associated fees.

Intelisys
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This rish 3 ol cunsidened 10 de significora, as the Company maintaing alequate cash and
commuission receivabde balances with slsorl lenm malkirtcs W e copsissions pasable and
other abligaipong us thay arise.

All of the Contpany™s fiabilies at Decemiber 31, X1 7 nee pavable within one year.

Cuprency Risk

The Campany is exposed o currency risk an balances nnd transactions that nre denominated in
foreign currencies. The Company mznoges this risk by utilizing funds received in n foreion
currency o setile commission and expenses in chot cummency. The abjective of cumrency risk
management is to manage and control fareign currency risk exposures within accepipbée
parameeers. while optimizng i retum on risk.

13. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Due w the short-term nnture of the magarity of the Companies Mnanclal issers and liabititics.
ther Bir valus e estimated 1o approx imsie their carrying vubues o the reporting dale.

14. CGAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Cempany’s policy is to maintain o stroneg cupilub buse so 35 10 sostoin fuguFe developrmeins of
the husiness. Theme were no changes in the Company®s appropeh o eapatal managenien durng
the year.

& d S 3haas

Intelisys
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Draft Financial Schedule showing December 31, 2018 results

Vi,
w8

ASSETS

Cinh and (ash equaalents

Atcounts recevable

Hrepald expenses and depovts

Propasty, plant and equpment
Tolal Aysets

UAGILITIES AND EQUITY
UABILTIES

Actrued ¢spensces and other Habilitios
Fotal Usbllities
tquiry

Shave capital

Contributed surpluy

Rotamed eartungs
Votal Equity

Total Uabititles and Shascholder's Equily

Pucitico Global Ravtsars Ltd.

Intelisys
As at November 30, 2019

BALANCE SHEET
Dec-10 Mor-19 Sun-19 Jut-19 Aug19
670,962 654,529 568,564 470,921 234.073
958,050 1262,700 1,330,983 1,295,207 1,397.4
128981 132,652 127,518 225,794 124078
20,467 67,516 64,568 63,581 6259
1.828,460 2,117,404 ﬁs]ﬁlﬁ 4%”’ 1,828,199
¥A3,409 1,039,049 1,052,607 1,006,628 1,015.037
585,405 1,034 049 1,052,605 1,006.658 1,015,037
25,000 15,000 25,000 25000 5,000
535,160 345,160 545,100 545,160 545,100
372,951 508.256 S28.919 I’ s 243 062
943,051 1,078,356 1,065,019 943,815 813,162
1,828,160 2,117,404 2,151,626 1,955,503 1,828,199
————
1019
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Yula
-

Yeor-to-date
INCOME

Feaincome

Other Income

Interest income

Unreafized gamn on imvestments
Total income

EXPENSES

Commissions
Custodian fees
Managing Dxrectars fees
Salaties 2nd employee benefits
Professional and legal foes
Other Operating {osts

Total expoases

NET (NCOME / [LOSS)

Pacifico Giebal Aovisors t1d.

Intelisys
As at November 30, 2019

INCOME STATEMENT
Dec-18 Mar-19 Jun19 -39 Aug-19
12 monns Q2619 Q22019 {7 moatns) (8 months)
$.398,690 1,154,033 1911715 1,004,056 2,105,351
232,418 67,000 67,000 67.000 67.000
2,205 - 13,908 1390¢ 13908
5,633,813 1,221,053 1,992,623 2,084,964 2,186,259
1,272,932 225,263 217,389 121837 221,837
193,070 10,260 15,535 15,535 15535
1,867,503 302,029 603,110 704,102 899,720
356,787 114,450 215346 247,263 239803 ¢
256,509 31,158 33,688 38213 87,633
1,524,290 402,597 751,585 852,249 851,619
5,426,090 1,088,747 1,836,653 2,079,198 2,316,147
157,723 135,305 135,970 5,766 (lzuaa!
019 1
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6 — Supervision Order

SUPREME COURT
IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE BAHAMAS NOY L8 2019
COMMERCIAL DIVISION Nmu. Bahamaa

CAUSE NO. COM/bnk/00077 OF 2019

IN THE MATTER OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1992, CH. 308

AND IN THE MATTER OF PACIFICO GLOBAL ADVISORS LTD.

SUPERVISION ORDER

BEFORE il Honourable Mr. Justice lan Winder, Judge of the Supreme Caun.,
in Chambers.

UPON HEARING Mrs. Simone Morgan-Gomez, Mrs. Courtiey Pearce-Hanna
and Ms. Philisen Bethel Counsel for Mr, Edmund Rahming of INTELISYS, 2 Caves
Professional Center, Caves Village, West Bay Street & Blake Road, Nassau, The Bahamas
(“Voluntary Liquidator”) upon his petition for an order that the liquidation of Pacifico
Globkal Advisors Lid. (“the Company™) continue under the supervision of the Court and
Messrs, Gawaine Ward and Gladstene Brawn af the Securities Commission of The
Bahamas.

AND UPON READING the following documents: Winding Up Petition dated 23
Oclober 2019 and filed herein on 24™ October 2019: Summons for Directions dated 23
October 2019 and filed herein on 4% October 2019: First Affidavit of Edmund Rahming:
in Support of Winding Up Petition sworn 23" October 2019 ard filed hercin on 24

October 2019; Sccond  Aflidavit  of Edmund Rahming: Reparding Acceptance off

Intelisys

As at November 30, 2019 09 0 0 6 4
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Appointment as Official Liquidator swom 23" October 2019 and filed herein on 24%

October 2019 and Certificate of Urgency dated 24% October 2019 and filed herein on 251

October 2019.

AND UPON THE COURT BEING SATISFIED that the Voluntary Liquidator

is a qualified insolvency practitioner,

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED THAT:

Intelisys
As at November 30, 2019

1. The liquidation of the Company be continued under the supervision of the
Court,

2 The commencement date of the liquidation herein is 2 October 2019.

3. M. Edmund Rahming, Chartered Accountant and Managing Director in the
accountancy and assct recovery services company of Intelisys Lid., situate at 2
Caves Professional Center, Caves Village, West Bay Street & Blake Rozd, Nassau,
The Bahamas be appointed as the Official Liguidater of the Company.

4, The company INTELISYS of 2 Caves Professional Center, Caves Village,
West Bay Street & Blake Road, Nassau, The Bahamas be sppointed to provide back
office support services to the Company.

5. The law firm of Callenders & Co. of No.] Millars Court, Nassau, The
Bahamas be appointed to provide which will provide general counsel legal services.
6. All costs incurred by Mr. Rahming and his sdvisors to date shall be casts in
the liquidation.

2jPape
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7. The Ofiicial Liquidator of (he Company has libetty 1o apply.
DATED the 28" day of October, A.D)., 2019,
FILED the, day of November, A.D., 2019,
BY ORDER OF THE COURT
REGISTRAR
This Order was filed by CALLENDERS & CO.. of No. | Millars Count, Nassau, N.P.
Attorneys for the Official Liquidator.
3APage

Intelisys
As at November 30, 2019
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IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE
BAHAMAS

COMMERCIAL DIVISION

IN THE MATTER OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 1992, CH. 308

AND IN THE MATTER OF PACIFICO
GLOBAL ADVISORS LTD.

SUPERVISION ORDER

2019

COM/bnk/00077

7 e
e
Chambers
One Millars Count
Nassau, N.P., The Bahamas

Attorneys for the Official Liquidator

SAM-GFE2SUTE N3

Intelisys

As at November 30, 2019 60 O 0 6 7
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7 - Receipts & Disbursements Schedule

Intelisys
As at November 30, 2019
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PACIFICO GLOBAL ADVISORS LTD (IN OFFICIAL LIQUIDATION)
STATEMENT OF LIQUIDATOR'S RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD 2 CCTOBER 2019 THRU 30 NOVEMBER 2019
Expressed in Bahamian Dollars (BSD)

OPENING 'CASH,BAI,AN'CE - 02/10/2019 275,085
RECEIPTS .
Collection of Receivables 27,201
Proceeds from sale of Assets 15,460
Deposit/Taxes Refund 13,526
Miscellaneous receipt - under investigation 6,600
Internal Balance Transfer -
Commission Income -
TOTAL RECEIPTS 62,786
- DISBURSEMENTS
Wages 50,373
IT Costs 32,881
Liquidator's Out of Pocket 26,404
Relocation/Storage Costs 1,691
Utilities - Sublet Unit 912
Bank Charges/Interest 555
Advertisement 504
Statutory/Regulatory Fees 480
Utilities - Rental Unit 350
Value Added Tax 3
Legal Expenses -
TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS 114,154
ENDING BALANCE - 30/11/2019 223,717
AVAILABLE CASH BALANCE - 30/11/2019 23717

Intelisys
As at November 30, 2019
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8 — Accrued and Unpaid Expenses October 2, 2019 to November 30, 2019

PACIFICO GLOBAL ADVISORS LTD.
OFFICIAL LIQUIDATOR'S ESTIMATE OF ACCRUED & UNPAID LIABILITIES
OCTOBER 2, 2019 THRU NOVEMBER 30, 2019

VENDOR/SERVICES BSD
Micronet Computers - October Leased costs 1,337
Callendars - legal services
Intelisys Ltd - liquidation fees and costs 310,502
Southworth Consultants - IT services 2,072
TOTAL ACCRUED AND UNPAID ESTIMATED LIABILITIES $313,911

Intelisys
As at November 30, 2019
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9 - Listing of custodians

PACIFICO GLOBAL ADVISORS LTD (in OFFICIAL LIQUIDATION)
FIDUCIARY & COMMERCIAL INSTITUTIONS OF RECORD
CUSTODIAL & OPERATIONAL HOLDINGS

1. |Ansbacher Bank (Bahamas) Balance Maintained
2. |BancaCredinvest Balance Maintained
[ 3. |Banca Del Sempione Zero Balance
" 4. |cBH Bahamas Ltd. No response, however no balance on company records
[ s, Deltec Bank & Trust (Bahamas) Balance Maintained
[ 6. Finamic Balance Maintained
[ 7. |GonetBank & Trust Limited (Bahamas) No response, however no balance on company records
[ 8. |Interactive Brokers LLC No response, however company records indicate balance
[ 9. |North International Bank (Antigua) No response, however company records indicate balance
! 10. |Private Investment Bank (Bahamas) Zero Balance
[ 11, Royal Bank of Canada {Bahamas) Balance Maintained
12. [Swissquote Balance Maintained
13. |Vauban International Bank Zero Balance
14. |Xaris Inc No response, however no balance on company records
Intelisys

As at November 30, 2019
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COMMONWEALTH OF THE BAHAMAS
IN THE SUPREME COURT

Commercial Division

IN THE MATTER OF THE COMPANIES
ACT, 1992, CH. 308

AND IN THE MATTER OF PACIFICO
GLOBAL ADVISORS LTD.
(IN LIQUIDATION)

FIFTH AFFIDAVIT
OF
EDMUND L. RAHMING

2019
COM/bnk/00077
, -
NOER. S ’4
CALLENDERS & CO.'
Chambers
One Millars Court
Shirley Street

Nassau, The Bahamas

Attorneys for the Official Liquidator

SAM-G/PB/25078.01



